
London Borough of Harrow 
 

 
 

JOINT HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE AND 
LIFELONG LEARNING SCRUTINY SUB-

COMMITTEES 
 

WEDNESDAY 17 SEPTEMBER 2003 
7.30 PM  

 
SUB-COMMITTEE AGENDA (SCRUTINY) 

 
COUNCIL CHAMBER              

HARROW CIVIC CENTRE 
 
 
 
 

The memberships of the Health and Social Care and Lifelong Learning 
Scrutiny Sub-Committees are detailed on the following page 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Issued by the Committee Services Section, 
Law and Administration Division 

 
Contact:  Heather Smith, Committee Administrator 
Tel:  020 8424 1785    E-mail:  heather.smith@harrow.gov.uk 

 
NOTE FOR THOSE ATTENDING THE MEETING: 

IF YOU WISH TO DISPOSE OF THIS AGENDA, PLEASE LEAVE IT BEHIND AFTER THE MEETING. 
IT WILL BE COLLECTED FOR RECYCLING. 



 

 

Membership of the Health and Social Care Scrutiny Sub-Committee 
 

 
MEMBERSHIP  (Quorum 3) 

 
Chair: Councillor Marie-Louise Nolan 

 
Councillors: 

 
Ann Groves 
Thammaiah 
Lavingia 

Myra Michael 
Anjana Patel 
Silver  

(none) (none) 

 
Advisor to the Sub-Committee:  Dr S Ahmad 
 

 
 

 
Reserve Members: 

 
1. Blann 
2. Gate 
3. Mitzi Green 
4. Toms 
 

1. Mrs Champagnie 
2. Mrs Joyce Nickolay 
3. Jean Lammiman 
 

(none) (none) 

 

 
Membership of the Lifelong Learning Scrutiny Sub-Committee 
 

 
  MEMBERSHIP    (Quorum 4) 
    
 
  Chair: 

 
Councillor Mitzi Green 

 
Councillors: 

 
Gate 
Marie-Louise Nolan 
Ismail 
Lent 
 

Miss Bednell 
Mary John 
Jean Lammiman 
Janet Mote 
John Nickolay 
 

(none) 
 

(none) 
 

Representatives of Voluntary Aided Sector:  Mrs J Rammelt/Reverend P Reece 
 
Representatives of Parent Governors:  Mr Humphrey Epie/Mr Russell Sutcliffe 
 

 
 

Reserve Members: 
 

1. Thammaiah 
2. Lavingia 
3. Kinsey 
4. Blann 
5. Anne Whitehead 
 

1. Vina Mithani 
2. Osborn 
3. Anjana Patel 
4. Mrs Bath 
5. Kara 
 

(none) 
 

(none) 
 

 



 

 

 
  LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW 

 
JOINT HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE AND LIFELONG LEARNING 
SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEES 
 
WEDNESDAY 17 SEPTEMBER 2003 
 

 
 

  AGENDA - PART I   
 

1. Appointment of Chair:    
 To appoint a Chair for the meeting. 

 
2. Attendance by Reserve Members:    
 To note the attendance at this meeting of any duly appointed Reserve 

Members. 
 

3. Declarations of Interest:    
 To receive declarations of interest (if any) from Members of the Committee 

arising from business to be transacted at this meeting. 
 

4. Arrangement of Agenda:    
 To consider whether any of the items listed on the agenda should be 

considered with the press and public excluded on the grounds that it is 
thought likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted, that 
there would be disclosure of confidential information in breach of an 
obligation of confidence or of exempt information as defined in the Local 
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985. 
 

5. Minutes:    
 That the signing of the minutes of the Health and Social Care Scrutiny Sub-

Committee meetings held on 8 May, 18 June, and 24 July and the minutes of 
the Lifelong Learning Scrutiny Sub-Committee meeting held on 30 July be 
deferred to the next ordinary meetings of the relevant Sub-Committees. 
 

6. Public Questions:    
 To receive questions (if any) relating to existing agenda items from local 

residents or organisations under the provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 
15 (Part 4B of the Constitution). 
 

7. Petitions:    
 To receive petitions (if any) relating to existing agenda items submitted by 

members of the public/Councillors under the provisions of Committee 
Procedure Rule 15 (Part 4B of the Constitution). 
 

8. Deputations:    
 To receive deputations (if any) relating to existing agenda items under the 

provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 16 (Part 4B of the Constitution). 
 

9. Audit Commission Review of Certain Learning Disability Services - 
Progress against the Recommendations:  (Pages 1 - 52) 

 

 Report of the Head of Community Care. 
 

 10. Early Years Special Educational Needs:  (Pages 53 - 74) 



 

 

  Report of the Executive Director (People First). 
 

11. The Gatsby Project - Report on Completion of Project:  (Pages 75 - 82)  
 Report of the Executive Director (People First). 

 
12. Progress on Healthy Lifestyles in Schools Review:  (Pages 83 - 88)  
 Report of the Executive Director (People First). 

 
13. Update on the development of the People First Directorate:  (Pages 89 - 

96) 
 

 Report of the Executive Director (People First). 
 

  AGENDA - PART II - NIL   
 

 



14 08 03 H&F&C Life Long Com Rept 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW 
 
 

Meeting:  
 

Joint Meeting of the Health And Social Care and Lifelong Learning 
Scrutiny Sub -Committees 

Date:        
 

17 September 2003 

Subject:  
 

Review of certain learning disability services by the Audit Commission 

Responsible 
Chief Officer:  
 

Head of Community Care 

Status:  
 

Part 1 

Ward:     
 

All 

Enclosures:  A. Copy of Audit Commission report and action plan 
B. Copy of Overview and Scrutiny Health and Social Care Sub-Committee 
report September 19 2002. 
C. Action Plan Update 

 
1. Summary 
 
1.1 This report updates the Joint Meeting of progress against the Audit Commission action 

plan submitted to the Audit Commission in July 2002, following their audit of some 
aspects of the management of services provided by the Harrow Learning Disability Team 
(HLDT). 

 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1      To note current progress. 
 
3. Relevant Previous Decisions 
 
3.1  The Lifelong Learning Scrutiny Sub Committee received a copy of the report submitted to 

the Health and Social Care Scrutiny Sub Committee on September 19, 2002 and 
requested that a joint meeting of the two committees be held to receive an update on 
progress on the action plan one year later. 

 
4.  Relevance to Corporate Priorities 
 
4.1 This report is relevant to the Council’s objective of improving the quality of health and 

social care in Harrow. 
 
5. Background Information  
 
5.1 As reported last year the Audit Commission was invited by the then Director of Social 

Services to review the response the Department was taking to contain expenditure on the 
residential and day care of people suffering from complex learning disabilities including 
disorders on the autistic spectrum and other cognitive disabilities. At the point of making 
the request, significant budget overspends in this area were being reported.  

 
 
 

Agenda Item 9
Pages 1 to 52

1



14 08 03 H&F&C Life Long Com Rept 

5.2 Further, performance on the national performance indicators suggested that Harrow was 
purchasing residential and nursing care at greater cost or more often than other outer 
London boroughs. 

 
5.3 The purpose of the Audit Commission’s review was to establish whether the HLDT was 

tackling these issues in the most cost effective manner, whilst maintaining appropriate 
professional standards and meeting it’s legal requirements. The review report was 
agreed in July 2002 and the action plan was submitted back to the Audit Commission in 
September last year. This completed the review and there has been no follow up by the 
Audit Commission since then. It has to be said that the review report did not as hoped 
address all the issues it was hoped it would. 

 
5.4 Since the action plan was completed progress has been made in pursuing some actions 

but others are awaiting the outcome of a review being undertaken by the National 
Development Team, a Government sponsored independent agency, which promotes 
good practice in learning disability services. Although commissioned in the Autumn of last 
year due to reasons beyond the Council’s control the NDT have severely delayed on the 
production of their review and at the time of drafting this report the NDT report had not 
been delivered. A verbal update on this will be given at the joint meeting of the Sub 
Committees. Other matters have also over taken some of the proposed actions and 
these are referred to in the action plan update. 

 
5.5 In the report to the Health and Social Care Sub Committee in September of last year, a 

summary of the strengths and weaknesses in found in the Audit Commission review was 
identified. General progress on these issues is also dealt with in the attached action plan 
update. 

 
5.6 It should also be noted that the HLDT is a co-located team with the services provided by 

the Harrow PCT. Although mandated to concern itself with that part of the HLDT for 
which the Council was responsible it was inevitable that the findings and 
recommendations would touch on areas that are the responsibility of the PCT. The 
responses to the action plan were framed in terms of those matters the Council was 
responsible for. 

 
6. Consultation 
 
6.1 The Audit Commission Report was considered by the Learning Disability Partnership 

Board, which has user and carer representation. 
 
7. Finance Observations 
 
7.1 There are no immediate budgetary implications arising from this report but the impact of 

the NDT report will need to be considered as part of this Councils review of the medium 
term budget strategy.  

 
8. Legal Observations 
 
8.1 No legal observations 
 
9. Conclusion 
 
9.1  Progress on the action plan agreed following the Audit Commission has been maintained 
 although some proposed developments have either been delayed or amended as 
 thinking about the future of the HLDT has progressed 
 

2



14 08 03 H&F&C Life Long Com Rept 

10. Background Papers  
 
10.1 None 
 
11. Author 
 
11.1 David Burnell 

Head of Community Care (until September 3 2003) 
Tel: 020 8424 1361 
email: david.burnell@harrow.gov.uk 

3



4

This page is intentionally left blank



Enclosure A

5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36

This page is intentionally left blank



Reference: MIL02HA02102ap (Draft Version) 

Date: July 2002 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Adults with Learning 
Disabilities (draft version) 

London Borough of 
Harrow 

A C T I O N  P L A N  

 

audit  2001/2002 

37



 

 

38



   
 

 A
C
T
IO

N
 P

LA
N

 

  Ad
ul

ts
 w

ith
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

D
is

ab
ilit

ie
s 

(d
ra

ft 
ve

rs
io

n)
 - 

20
01

/2
00

2 
Lo

nd
on

 B
or

ou
gh

 o
f H

ar
ro

w
 P

ag
e 

AP
1 

 

au
di

t 
 2

00
1/

20
02

 

 

P
a
g

e
 

R
e
co

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 
1
 =

 L
o
w

 
2
 =

 M
ed

 
3
 =

 H
ig

h
 

R
e
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

y
 

A
g

re
e
d

 
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 

D
a
te

 

 
Is

 t
h

e
re

 a
 s

h
a
re

d
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 f
o

r 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

fo
r 

a
d

u
lt

s 
w

it
h

 l
e
a
rn

in
g

 d
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s?

 

6
 

R
1
 

R
ev

ie
w

 t
h
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
o
f 

th
e 

Pa
rt

n
er

sh
ip

 B
o
ar

d
 a

ft
er

 
1
2
 m

o
n
th

s.
  

2
 

C
h
ai

r 
o
f 

 L
D

P
B
 (

H
ea

d
 o

f 
C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

C
ar

e 
LB

H
) 

 !
 

T
h
e 

LD
PB

 i
s 

cu
rr

en
tl
y 

co
n
si

d
er

in
g
 h

o
w

 t
o
 e

va
lu

at
e 

it
s 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

. 
O

ct
o
b
er

 2
0
0
2
 

6
 

R
2
 

R
ev

ie
w

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e 

Pa
rt

n
er

sh
ip

 B
o
ar

d
 t

h
e 

p
at

te
rn

 o
f 

se
rv

ic
e 

p
ro

vi
si

o
n
. 

T
h
is

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e 

a 
w

h
o
le

-
sy

st
em

s 
ap

p
ro

ac
h
, 

ta
ki

n
g
 

ac
co

u
n
t 

o
f 

th
e 

w
o
rk

 d
o
n
e 

o
n
 t

h
e 

Pa
th

. 

  3
 

C
h
ai

r 
o
f 

LD
P
B
 

 D
ir
ec

to
r 

o
f 

S
er

vi
ce

 
M

o
d
er

n
is

at
io

n
 (

PC
T
) 

  

!
 

T
h
e 

N
at

io
n
al

 D
ev

el
o
p
m

en
t 

T
ea

m
 h

av
e 

ag
re

ed
 t

o
 

u
n
d
er

ta
ke

 a
n
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
H

LD
T
 f

ro
m

 S
ep

te
m

b
er

. 
 O

th
er

 
ar

ea
s 

o
f 

se
rv

ic
e 

p
ro

vi
si

o
n
 e

g
 h

o
u
si

n
g
 &

 h
ea

lt
h
 a

re
 

b
ei

n
g
 r

ev
ie

w
ed

 b
y 

L:
D

PB
 

 

T
.B

.C
. 

6
 

R
3
 

Pr
o
d
u
ce

 a
 c

o
st

ed
 a

n
d
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
se

d
 a

ct
io

n
 p

la
n
 w

it
h
 

S
M

A
R
T
 t

ar
g
et

s 
to

 a
d
d
re

ss
 

th
e 

is
su

es
 i
d
en

ti
fi
ed

 i
n
 t

h
e 

re
vi

ew
 

 

2
 

LD
 J

o
in

t 
C
o
m

m
is

si
o
n
in

g
 

M
an

ag
er

 

LD
PB

 C
h
ai

r 
 

H
ea

d
 o

f 
S
er

vi
ce

 
M

o
d
er

n
is

at
io

n
 

 !
 

A
 s

er
ie

s 
o
f 

st
ra

te
g
ie

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
d
ev

el
o
p
ed

 f
o
r 

sp
ec

if
ic

 
se

rv
ic

e 
ar

ea
s 

an
d
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

co
rp

o
ra

te
d
 i
n
to

 a
 J

o
in

t 
C
o
m

m
is

si
o
n
in

g
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

fo
r 

LD
. 

 

O
n
g
o
in

g
 

6
 

R
4
 

Pr
ep

ar
e 

an
d
 s

u
b
m

it
 a

 
b
u
si

n
es

s 
ca

se
 f

o
r 

A
d
u
lt
 

Le
ar

n
in

g
 D

is
ab

ili
ty

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 b
e 

a 
p
ri
o
ri
ty

 c
al

l 
o
n
 t

h
e 

C
o
u
n
ci

l’s
 c

ap
ac

it
y 

to
 b

id
 f

o
r 

an
d
 b

ri
n
g
 i
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
al

 a
n
d
 

ex
te

rn
al

 f
u
n
d
in

g
. 

  1
 

 H
ea

d
 o

f 
C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

C
ar

e 

  

Pa
rt

ia
l 

LD
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

h
av

e 
al

re
ad

y 
se

cu
re

d
 a

 P
FI

 (
£
1
0
m

) 
to

 i
.e

. 
 

- 
p
ro

vi
d
e 

d
ay

 c
ar

e 

A
 s

ec
o
n
d
 P

FI
 (

£
5
.6

m
) 

is
 a

t 
O

B
C
 s

ta
g
e 

fo
r 

su
p
p
o
rt

ed
 

h
o
u
si

n
g
. 

2
0
0
4
 

 

? 
2
0
0
5
 

7
 

R
5
 

E
n
su

re
 t

h
e 

Pa
rt

n
er

sh
ip

 
B
o
ar

d
 h

as
 t

h
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n
 

n
ec

es
sa

ry
 o

n
 b

u
d
g
et

s 
an

d
 

ac
ti
vi

ti
es

 a
s 

w
el

l 
as

 n
ee

d
. 

 2
 

Jo
in

t 
C
o
m

m
is

si
o
n
in

g
 

M
an

ag
er

 
 !
 

T
h
is

 i
n
fo

rm
at

io
n
 w

ill
 b

e 
su

p
p
lie

d
 i
n
 t

h
e 

Jo
in

t 
C
o
m

m
is

si
o
n
in

g
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
3
 

39



   
 

 A
C
T
IO

N
 P

LA
N

 

  Ad
ul

ts
 w

ith
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

D
is

ab
ilit

ie
s 

(d
ra

ft 
ve

rs
io

n)
 - 

20
01

/2
00

2 
Lo

nd
on

 B
or

ou
gh

 o
f H

ar
ro

w
 P

ag
e 

AP
2 

 

au
di

t 
 2

00
1/

20
02

 

 P
a
g

e
 

R
e
co

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 
1
 =

 L
o
w

 
2
 =

 M
ed

 
3
 =

 H
ig

h
 

R
e
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

y
 

A
g

re
e
d

 
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 

D
a
te

 

 
W

h
a
t 

is
 t

h
e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
th

e
 H

L
D

T
?
 

1
1
 

R
6
 

R
es

o
lv

e 
th

e 
u
n
ce

rt
ai

n
ty

 
o
ve

r 
th

e 
fu

tu
re

 o
f 

th
e 

H
LD

T
 

b
y 

d
ev

el
o
p
in

g
 a

n
 i
n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 

p
la

n
 f

o
r 

a 
si

n
g
le

 s
er

vi
ce

, 
o
r 

an
 a

lt
er

n
at

iv
e 

w
ay

 f
o
rw

ar
d
. 

 3
 

H
ea

d
 o

f 
C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

C
ar

e 
(L

B
H

) 

D
ir
ec

to
r 

o
f 

S
er

vi
ce

 
M

o
d
er

n
is

at
io

n
 (

PC
T
) 

 

!
 

W
o
rk

 h
as

 c
o
m

m
en

ce
d
 o

n
 S

3
1
 b

u
d
g
et

 a
rr

an
g
em

en
ts

 
fo

r 
co

m
m

is
si

o
n
in

g
. 

  

N
D

T
 w

o
rk

 w
ill

 l
ea

d
 t

o
 r

ev
is

ed
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

er
vi

ce
 

d
el

iv
er

y.
 

M
ar

ch
 2

0
0
3
 

 Ju
n
e 

2
0
0
3
 

1
1
 

R
7
 

R
es

o
lv

e 
th

e 
en

vi
ro

n
m

en
ta

l 
is

su
es

 b
y 

m
o
vi

n
g
 t

h
e 

te
am

 
to

 a
 m

o
re

 u
se

r-
fr

ie
n
d
ly

 
lo

ca
ti
o
n
, 

su
b
je

ct
 t

o
 t

h
e 

o
u
tc

o
m

e 
o
f 

R
6
. 

 2
 

H
ea

d
 o

f 
C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

C
ar

e 

D
ir
ec

to
r 

o
f 

S
er

vi
ce

 
M

o
d
er

n
is

at
io

n
  

 !
 

T
h
is

 n
ee

d
 i
s 

re
co

g
n
is

ed
. 

 L
ac

k 
o
f 

av
ai

la
b
le

 r
ev

en
u
e 

fu
n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 s

u
it
ab

le
 a

cc
o
m

m
o
d
at

io
n
 h

as
 b

lo
ck

ed
 

ac
ti
o
n
 

 N
o
t 

kn
o
w

n
 

1
4
 

R
8
 

C
o
n
si

d
er

 t
h
e 

Pa
th

 a
t 

th
e 

n
ew

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 B
o
ar

d
 a

n
d
 

in
te

g
ra

te
 i
t 

ex
p
lic

it
ly

 i
n
to

 
th

e 
n
ex

t 
JI

P,
 a

n
d
 t

h
e 

o
p
er

at
io

n
al

 f
ra

m
ew

o
rk

 o
f 

th
e 

H
LD

T
  

 2
 

H
ea

d
 o

f 
C
ar

e 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
(L

B
H

) 

Jo
in

t 
C
o
m

m
is

si
o
n
in

g
 

M
an

ag
er

 

D
ir
ec

to
r 

o
f 

S
M

 

 !
 

PA
T
H

 a
ct

iv
it
ie

s 
w

ill
 i
n
fo

rm
 t

h
e 

va
ri
o
u
s 

LD
PB

's
 s

u
b
-

g
ro

u
p
 p

la
n
n
in

g
, 

in
cl

u
d
in

g
 H

LD
T
 r

ev
ie

w
 

 

O
n
-g

o
in

g
 

40



   
 

 A
C
T
IO

N
 P

LA
N

 

  Ad
ul

ts
 w

ith
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

D
is

ab
ilit

ie
s 

(d
ra

ft 
ve

rs
io

n)
 - 

20
01

/2
00

2 
Lo

nd
on

 B
or

ou
gh

 o
f H

ar
ro

w
 P

ag
e 

AP
3 

 

au
di

t 
 2

00
1/

20
02

 

 P
a
g

e
 

R
e
co

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 
1
 =

 L
o
w

 
2
 =

 M
ed

 
3
 =

 H
ig

h
 

R
e
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

y
 

A
g

re
e
d

 
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 

D
a
te

 

1
4
 

R
9
 

E
st

ab
lis

h
 (

su
b
je

ct
 t

o
 t

h
e 

o
u
tc

o
m

e 
o
f 

R
6
) 

ac
ti
o
n
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e 

H
LD

T
 

to
: 

• 
lin

k 
te

am
 a

ct
iv

it
ie

s 
to

 
st

ra
te

g
ic

 a
n
d
 

in
te

ra
g
en

cy
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
es

 

• 
co

n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 S

S
D

 a
n
d
 

T
ru

st
 p

la
n
s 

• 
es

ta
b
lis

h
 S

M
A
R
T
 t

ar
g
et

s 
fo

r 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 

   

3
  3
  3
 

H
ea

d
 o

f 
C
ar

e 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 

 Jo
in

t 
C
o
m

m
is

si
o
n
in

g
 

M
an

ag
er

 

D
ir
ec

to
r 

o
f 

S
er

vi
ce

 
M

o
d
er

n
is

at
io

n
 

H
LD

T
 M

an
ag

er
 (

al
l)

 

  

 !
  !
 

!
 

   T
h
es

e 
re

co
m

m
en

d
at

io
n
s 

w
ill

 d
ro

p
-o

u
t 

o
f 

th
e 

N
D

T
 

re
vi

ew
 o

f 
H

LD
T
, 

p
lu

s 
co

m
p
lia

n
ce

 t
o
 F

ai
r 

A
cc

es
s 

to
 C

ar
e 

Pr
o
je

ct
 a

n
d
 J

o
in

t 
C
o
m

m
is

si
o
n
in

g
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

  

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
3
 

 to
  

Ju
n
e 

2
0
0
3
 

1
5
 

R
1
0
 

Im
p
le

m
en

t 
a 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
fr

am
ew

o
rk

 i
n
 

th
e 

H
LD

T
, 

su
b
je

ct
 t

o
 t

h
e 

o
u
tc

o
m

e 
o
f 

R
6
 

 3
 

H
ea

d
 o

f 
C
ar

e 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 

D
ir
ec

to
r 

o
f 

S
p
ec

ia
lis

t 
S
er

vi
ce

s 
(P

C
T
) 

 !
 

A
n
 i
n
it
ia

l 
p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

fr
am

ew
o
rk

 f
o
r 

S
S
D

 s
ta

ff
 h

as
 n

o
w

 b
ee

n
 i
m

p
le

m
en

te
d
 

 

O
n
-g

o
in

g
 

 
H

o
w

 e
ff

e
ct

iv
e
 a

re
 c

a
re

 m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
?
 

1
8
 

R
1
1
 

P
ro

d
u
ce

 a
 w

ri
tt

en
 

o
p
er

at
io

n
al

 p
o
lic

y 
fo

r 
th

e 
te

am
 t

h
at

 p
ro

vi
d
es

 c
le

ar
 

g
u
id

an
ce

 o
n
 h

o
w

 t
h
e 

H
LD

T
 

sh
o
u
ld

 o
p
er

at
e,

 i
n
cl

u
d
in

g
 

th
e 

re
la

ti
ve

 w
ei

g
h
ti
n
g
 o

f 
th

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
an

d
 s

er
vi

ce
 

p
ro

vi
si

o
n
 f

u
n
ct

io
n
s,

 a
n
d
 

tr
an

sp
ar

en
t 

d
ec

is
io

n
 m

ak
in

g
 

o
n
 s

er
vi

ce
 p

ro
vi

si
o
n
. 

  2
 

H
ea

d
 o

f 
C
ar

e 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 

 H
LD

T
 M

an
ag

er
 

 D
ir
ec

to
r 

o
f 

S
p
ec

ia
lis

t 
S
er

vi
ce

s 

   !
 

 T
h
e 

o
p
er

at
io

n
al

 p
o
lic

y 
w

ill
 b

e 
w

ri
tt

en
 o

n
ce

 t
h
e 

N
D

T
 

re
vi

ew
 i
f 

co
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d
 t

h
e 

C
o
u
n
ci

l 
en

d
o
rs

es
 t

h
e 

n
ew

 
el

ig
ib

ili
ty

 c
ri
te

ri
a 

re
q
u
ir
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

Fa
ir
 A

cc
es

s 
to

 C
ar

e 
Pr

o
je

ct
. 

 

Ju
n
e 

2
0
0
3
 

41



   
 

 A
C
T
IO

N
 P

LA
N

 

  Ad
ul

ts
 w

ith
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

D
is

ab
ilit

ie
s 

(d
ra

ft 
ve

rs
io

n)
 - 

20
01

/2
00

2 
Lo

nd
on

 B
or

ou
gh

 o
f H

ar
ro

w
 P

ag
e 

AP
4 

 

au
di

t 
 2

00
1/

20
02

 

 P
a
g

e
 

R
e
co

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 
1
 =

 L
o
w

 
2
 =

 M
ed

 
3
 =

 H
ig

h
 

R
e
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

y
 

A
g

re
e
d

 
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 

D
a
te

 

1
8
 

R
1
2
 

E
st

ab
lis

h
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
en

t 
el

ig
ib

ili
ty

 c
ri
te

ri
a 

th
at

 r
ef

le
ct

 
st

ra
te

g
ic

 j
o
in

t 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
es

 a
n
d
 

th
e 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
es

 a
n
d
 o

b
je

ct
iv

es
 

es
ta

b
lis

h
ed

 f
o
r 

th
e 

te
am

, 
su

b
je

ct
 t

o
 t

h
e 

o
u
tc

o
m

e 
o
f 

R
6
. 

 

2
 

H
ea

d
 o

f 
C
ar

e 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 

D
ir
ec

to
r 

o
f 

S
p
ec

ia
lis

t 
S
er

vi
ce

s 

H
LD

T
 M

an
ag

er
 

 

!
 

R
em

ar
ks

 a
s 

in
 r

ec
o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n
 1

1
 a

p
p
ly

 
 Ju

n
e 

2
0
0
3
 

1
8
 

R
1
3
 

U
n
d
er

ta
ke

 a
 r

is
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

o
f 

th
e 

w
o
rk

 i
n
 

w
h
ic

h
 t

h
e 

H
LD

T
 i
s 

in
vo

lv
ed

. 
 

3
 

H
LD

T
 M

an
ag

er
 

!
 

T
h
is

 w
o
rk

 i
s 

b
ei

n
g
 u

n
d
er

ta
ke

n
 i
n
 p

ar
t 

al
re

ad
y.

  
W

ill
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 a

s 
p
ar

t 
o
f 

o
p
er

at
io

n
al

 p
o
lic

y 
(s

ee
 a

b
o
ve

) 
O

n
-g

o
in

g
 

1
8
 

R
1
4
 

E
st

ab
lis

h
 a

 f
ra

m
ew

o
rk

 f
o
r 

re
sp

o
n
d
in

g
 t

o
 h

ig
h
-r

is
k 

ar
ea

s 
id

en
ti
fi
ed

 i
n
 t

h
e 

ri
sk

 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
th

at
 i
n
cl

u
d
es

 
p
ro

to
co

ls
 f

o
r 

cr
o
ss

-
b
o
u
n
d
ar

y 
w

o
rk

in
g
. 

 

2
 

H
ea

d
 o

f 
C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

C
ar

e 

D
ir
ec

to
r 

o
f 

S
p
ec

ia
lis

t 
S
er

vi
ce

s 

Jo
in

t 
C
o
m

m
is

si
o
n
in

g
 

M
an

ag
er

 

  !
 

T
h
e 

es
ta

b
lis

h
m

en
t 

o
f 

cr
o
ss

-b
o
u
n
d
ar

y 
p
ro

to
co

ls
, 

es
p
ec

ia
lly

 t
h
o
se

 w
it
h
 m

en
ta

l 
h
ea

lt
h
 w

ill
 b

e 
p
ar

t 
o
f 

th
e 

Fa
ir
 A

cc
es

s 
to

 C
ar

e 
an

d
 J

o
in

t 
C
o
m

m
is

si
o
n
in

g
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

w
o
rk

 

 M
ar

ch
 2

0
0
3
 

2
1
 

R
1
5
 

C
o
n
si

d
er

 t
h
e 

re
co

m
m

en
d
at

io
n
s 

o
f 

th
e 

S
S
I 

in
sp

ec
ti
o
n
 r

ep
o
rt

 o
n
 

H
U

M
H

S
 i
n
 t

er
m

s 
o
f 

an
y 

va
lu

e 
th

ey
 c

an
 a

d
d
 f

o
r 

th
e 

H
LD

T
, 

su
b
je

ct
 t

o
 t

h
e 

o
u
tc

o
m

e 
o
f 

R
6
. 

 

2
 

H
ea

d
 o

f 
C
ar

e 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 

 D
ir
ec

to
r 

o
f 

S
p
ec

ia
lis

t 
S
er

vi
ce

s 

  

!
 

 T
h
er

e 
ar

e 
m

an
y 

le
ss

o
n
s 

fr
om

 e
st

ab
lis

h
in

g
 t

h
e 

H
U

M
H

S
 

S
er

vi
ce

 t
o
 b

e 
ap

p
lie

d
 t

o
 t

h
e 

d
ev

el
o
p
m

en
t 

o
f 

th
e 

H
LD

T
. 

 

O
n
-g

o
in

g
 

42



   
 

 A
C
T
IO

N
 P

LA
N

 

  Ad
ul

ts
 w

ith
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

D
is

ab
ilit

ie
s 

(d
ra

ft 
ve

rs
io

n)
 - 

20
01

/2
00

2 
Lo

nd
on

 B
or

ou
gh

 o
f H

ar
ro

w
 P

ag
e 

AP
5 

 

au
di

t 
 2

00
1/

20
02

 

 P
a
g

e
 

R
e
co

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 
1
 =

 L
o
w

 
2
 =

 M
ed

 
3
 =

 H
ig

h
 

R
e
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

y
 

A
g

re
e
d

 
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 

D
a
te

 

2
2
 

R
1
6
 

In
 t

h
e 

co
n
te

xt
 o

f 
R
6
 a

n
d
 t

h
e 

d
ec

is
io

n
-m

ak
in

g
 a

b
o
u
t 

th
e 

es
ta

b
lis

h
m

en
t 

o
f 

a 
sp

ec
ia

lis
t 

ch
ild

re
n
’s

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 s

er
vi

ce
, 

es
ta

b
lis

h
 t

h
e 

cl
ea

r 
o
b
je

ct
iv

e 
to

 i
m

p
ro

ve
 t

h
e 

tr
an

si
ti
o
n
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 s

er
vi

ce
 t

o
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
eo

p
le

 w
it
h
 l
ea

rn
in

g
 

d
is

ab
ili

ti
es

 a
n
d
 t

h
ei

r 
ca

re
rs

: 

• 
es

ta
b
lis

h
 a

 j
o
in

t 
LE

A
/S

S
D

 p
ro

to
co

l 
to

 
id

en
ti
fy

 y
o
u
n
g
 p

eo
p
le

 
w

it
h
 l
ea

rn
in

g
 d

is
ab

ili
ti
es

 
w

h
o
 a

re
 a

p
p
ro

ac
h
in

g
 

th
ei

r 
1
4
+

 r
ev

ie
w

 

• 
d
ev

el
o
p
 a

 s
ys

te
m

 f
o
r 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
si

n
g
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 

th
o
se

 y
o
u
n
g
 p

eo
p
le

 
m

o
st

 a
t 

ri
sk

. 
T
h
e 

sy
st

em
 

fo
r 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
si

n
g
 s

h
o
u
ld

 
re

fl
ec

t 
w

id
er

 H
LD

T
 a

n
d
 

in
te

ra
g
en

cy
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
es

 

• 
en

su
re

 t
h
o
se

 w
it
h
 t

h
e 

h
ig

h
es

t 
p
ri
o
ri
ty

 a
re

 
al

lo
ca

te
d
 a

 s
o
ci

al
 w

o
rk

er
 

fo
r 

th
e 

tr
an

si
ti
o
n
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 p

er
io

d
. 

 

      

2
    2
     2
  

      H
ea

d
 o

f 
C
h
ild

re
n
 &

 
Fa

m
ili

es
 

  H
ea

d
 o

f 
ch

ild
re

n
 &

 
Fa

m
ili

es
 S

er
vi

ce
 

H
ea

d
 o

f 
C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

C
ar

e 

  M
an

ag
er

 o
f 

C
h
ild

re
n
 

w
it
h
 D

is
ab

ili
ty

 T
ea

m
 

    

      

√    √     √ 

      W
ill

 b
e 

u
n
d
er

ta
ke

n
 a

s 
p
ar

t 
o
f 

th
e 

es
ta

b
lis

h
m

en
t 

o
f 

th
e 

ch
ild

re
n
 w

it
h
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 t
ea

m
. 

 W
ill

 f
o
rm

 p
ar

t 
o
f 

th
e 

o
p
er

at
io

n
al

 p
o
lic

y 
(a

s 
ab

o
ve

) 

  A
s 

ab
o
ve

 

    A
s 

ab
o
ve

 

      

4
/0

3
 

   

4
/0

3
 

    

6
/0

3
 

43



   
 

 A
C
T
IO

N
 P

LA
N

 

  Ad
ul

ts
 w

ith
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

D
is

ab
ilit

ie
s 

(d
ra

ft 
ve

rs
io

n)
 - 

20
01

/2
00

2 
Lo

nd
on

 B
or

ou
gh

 o
f H

ar
ro

w
 P

ag
e 

AP
6 

 

au
di

t 
 2

00
1/

20
02

 

 P
a
g

e
 

R
e
co

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 
1
 =

 L
o
w

 
2
 =

 M
ed

 
3
 =

 H
ig

h
 

R
e
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

y
 

A
g

re
e
d

 
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 

D
a
te

 

 
C

o
st

 o
f 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 

2
5
 

R
1
7
 

R
ev

ie
w

 t
h
e 

sc
h
em

e 
o
f 

d
el

eg
at

io
n
 i
n
 t

h
e 

lig
h
t 

o
f 

th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
d
at

io
n
s 

ab
o
ve

 t
o
 

ex
p
lo

re
 h

o
w

 a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 

o
w

n
er

sh
ip

 o
ve

r 
sp

en
d
in

g
 

d
ec

is
io

n
s 

ca
n
 b

e 
ex

te
n
d
ed

 
to

g
et

h
er

. 

  2
 

 
  

√ 

 A
 s

ch
em

e 
o
f 

d
el

eg
at

io
n
 w

ill
 b

e 
es

ta
b
lis

h
ed

 f
o
r 

th
e 

n
ew

 
C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 D

is
ab

ili
ty

 T
ea

m
. 

 T
h
is

 w
ill

 i
n
cl

u
d
e 

fi
n
an

ci
al

 d
el

eg
at

io
n
. 

 

2
6
 

R
1
8
 

D
ev

el
o
p
 f

in
an

ci
al

 a
n
d
 a

ct
iv

it
y 

re
p
o
rt

s 
th

at
 f

ac
ili

ta
te

 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o

f 
th

e 
H

LD
T
’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

d
ed

 e
lig

ib
ili

ty
 

cr
it
er

ia
, 

o
p
er

at
io

n
al

 p
o
lic

y,
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
es

 a
n
d
 t

ar
g
et

s.
 

 

3
 

 
 

√ 

 T
h
is

 i
s 

an
 o

n
-g

o
in

g
 o

b
je

ct
iv

e 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s 

re
ce

iv
in

g
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 
in

 t
h
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t.

 

 

O
n
-g

o
in

g
 

2
6
 

R
1
9
  

 C
o
n
si

d
er

 h
o
w

 t
o
 d

ev
el

o
p
 t

h
e 

co
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t

h
at

 t
h
e 

Le
ar

n
in

g
 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 R

eg
is

te
r 

m
ak

es
 t

o
 s

er
vi

ce
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 

d
el

iv
er

y.
 

 

2
 

 
 

√ 

 T
h
e 

R
eg

is
te

rs
 r

o
le

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 a
s 

p
ar

t 
o
f 

th
e 

d
ev

el
o
p
m

en
t 

o
f 

th
e 

n
ee

d
s 

an
al

ys
is

 w
o
rk

 f
o
r 

JI
P 

an
d
 

co
m

m
is

si
o
n
in

g
 s

tr
at

eg
ie

s.
 

 

D
ec

 0
2
 

 

44



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\8\1\AI00006181\hsc902item130.doc 

Enclosure B 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW 
 
 
Meeting:  Overview and Scrutiny Health & Social Care Sub Committee 
 
Date:   19th September 2002 
 
Subject:  Review of Certain Learning Disability Services by the Audit 

Commission 
 
Responsible 
Chief Officer: Director of Social Services 
 
Ward:   All 
 
Enclosure:  Appendix 1 – Final Draft Report and Appendix 2 - Action Plan 
 
1. Summary 
 
1.1 The Audit Commission have reviewed several aspects of the Council’s service to 

people with a learning disability.  The report contains recommendations which have 
been responded to in an action plan 

 
 
2  Recommendations  
 
2.1 Accept Audit Report and endorse the Action Plan. 
 
 
3. Relevant Previous Decisions  
 
3.1 There has been no previous report on this matter. 
 
4. Relevance to Corporate Priorities 
 

This report is relevant to the Council’s objective of improving the quality of health and 
social care in Harrow. 

 
5. Background Information 
 
5.1 For the past few years there has been increasing pressure on the Councils budget 

for purchasing day and residential care for persons who suffer from learning 
disabilities and especially those with cognitive disabilities such as autistic spectrum 
disorders and Aspergers disease. Additionally, the National Performance 
Assessment Framework for Social Services demonstrated that Harrow was not 
performing well on the cost of its residential care for people with learning and 
cognitive disabilities. 

 
5.2 In the Summer of last year the Director of Social Services asked District Audit to 

undertake a review of the services provided by the Council with particular reference 
to the increasing cost of residential care services.  The purpose of the review was to 

45



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\8\1\AI00006181\hsc902item130.doc 

establish that the Council's provision of such services was as cost effective as 
possible and that they were delivered in a way that maximised the benefits of clear 
objectives and partnership working. 

 
5.3 The service review was completed in the Spring of this year and the final draft report 

was delivered in July.  The report will be finally agreed on completion of the Action 
Plan (Appendix 1 and Appendix 2). 

 
5.4 The scope and objectives for the review were agreed with officers and with Member 

input.  They are set out in detail on pages 2 and 3 of the report.  It is noted in this 
section of the report that the scope included a review of the transition arrangements 
for young people with learning or cognitive disabilities who were leaving the 
education system and whose future care would be the responsibility of the Social 
Services or the local health services.  In relation to budget pressures this is a crucial 
area where decisions and plans made can have a life long impact on the services 
offered to the young person. 

 
In addition to testing the robustness of these arrangements the report provides a 
"health check" on the Council's arrangements to deliver services with its partners to 
meet these needs.  The cost of services was also considered but it would have 
required more time than that allocated to have undertaken a fully bench marked 
survey of the comparative costs between this Council and other Councils. 
 

5.5 The report conclusions are summarised in pages 3 to 5. The detailed findings are 
presented in the "detailed report" which follows the main report. The response to the 
recommendations is at Appendix 2. This appendix identifies actions that have or will 
be taken to progress the reports' main recommendations. 

 
5.6 Overall the report identified the following issues: 
 

Strengths 
 
" Good relationships between the statutory agencies and with the voluntary 

agencies. 
 

" Establishment of the Learning Disability Partnership Board (LDPB) presents an 
opportunity to move the agenda forward. 

 
" The Harrow Learning Disability Team (HLDT) which is a joint Harrow Primary 

Care Trust (PCT) and Social Services team has good working relationships, 
enjoys the benefits of co-location and offers a single point of entry to services. 

 
Weaknesses 
 
" Lack of effectiveness in implementing the Joint Investment Plan (JIP) and 

absence of costed targets. 
 

" Need to plan future service provision for people with cognitive disabilities. 
 

" Confused management arrangements in the HLDT, with no clear operational 
policy, leading to unclear decision making and planning.  There is a need for 
greater performance management in the team. 

 

46



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\8\1\AI00006181\hsc902item130.doc 

" Eligibility criteria for services requires updating to take account of changes in 
demand. 

 
" The HLDT could be more effective in addressing child protection issues and other 

issues arising from disability, alongside a risk assessment system which needs to 
be in place. 

 
" Inadequate finance and activity information system, and not utilising the potential 

of the Learning Disability Register. 
 
 
5.7 The service review identified a number of significant areas of concern about the 

robustness of the arrangements to deliver good quality services to people with 
learning and cognitive disabilities.  Most of these were already known to the 
management of both the SSD and the PCT and action is being taken to address 
them. The commissioning of this service review was an early step in the work to 
recover the  
position. 
 

5.8 Fuller details of the action being taken appears in the response to the 
recommendations which is contained within the action plan.  Overall the key 
initiatives in response to the issue identified are: 

 
" A comprehensive review of the working of the HLDT which will be focussed on 

achieving a person centred planning approach for users and carers.  This is to be 
facilitated by the independent Government supported, National Development 
Team.  This will start in September 2002. 

 
" The creation of a new integrated Children with Disabilities Team by April 2003.  

This team will bring together a range of services for children and young people 
with disabilities and will initially be managed by the Children and Families 
Service. 

 
" As part of the two projects outlined above there will be a complete review of the 

“transition arrangements”.  A “Transition Champion” is being appointed by the 
LDPB. 

 
" The Government requires a complete review of all eligibility criteria for social 

services to adults, to be completed by April 2003.  This is known as the Fair 
Access to Care Scheme.  Eligibility criteria for services will be based on the 
assessed threat to independence and will apply equally across all disability 
groups.  Work on this project has already started. 

 
" Planning for services for people with a cognitive disability will be incorporated into 

the needs analysis work which is currently being undertaken as part of the 
LDPB’s preparation of a commissioning strategy. 

 
" The Department is actively addressing the need for more effective performance 

management in all areas.  The need for an effective management information 
system is well recognised and it is planned to have reached a decision about the 
procurement of a new system by the end of the year. 

 
 
 

47



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\8\1\AI00006181\hsc902item130.doc 

 
6. Consultation 
 
6.1 This matter has not been subject to prior consultation.  The issues within the Report 

will be considered by the Learning Disability Partnership Board which includes User 
and Carer representation. 

 
7. Finance Observations 
 
7.1 No observations 
 
8. Legal Observations 
 
8.1 No observations 
 
9. Conclusion 
 
9.1 It is recognised by senior management in both the SSD and the PCT that the 

effectiveness of the service provided by the HLDT has not fully kept pace with new 
statutory demands, new expectations from service users, and has not met the 
challenge of managing this demand within an increasingly constrained budget 
situation. 

 
9.2 A ‘recovery plan’ is in place and the Service Review Report and the response to it 

identifies the actions that will be taken. 
 
9.3 The introduction of the Government White Paper Valuing People which sets out “a 

new strategy for learning disability for the 21st Century” and with it the creation of 
LDPBs marks a sea change in the development of people with learning and cognitive 
disabilities and their carers. 

 
9.4 Overall, the services currently provided by the Council and the PCT to people with a 

range of disabilities have many strengths, not least a highly skilled and committed 
work force.  The Department is confident that it will bring about the reforms need to 
ensure that strong organisational arrangements will maintain and enhance the quality 
of the service. 

 
10. Background Papers 
 
10.1 None 
 
11. Author 
 
11.1 David Burnell 
 Head of Community Care 
  

48



49



50



51



52

This page is intentionally left blank



LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW 
 
 
 
 

Meeting: 
 

Life Long Learning Health and Social Care Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 
 

17th September 2003 

Subject: 
 

Early Years Special Educational Needs 

Key decision: 
 

No 

Responsible 
Chief Officer: 
 

Paul Osburn, Executive Director (People First) 

Relevant 
Portfolio Holder: 
 

Cllr Stephenson 

Status: 
 

Public 

Ward: 
 

All 

Enclosures: 
 

Early Years Special Educational Needs Report 
Appendix 1:  Early Years Special Educational Needs Service 
Provision 
Appendix 2:  Early Years Special Educational Needs Data 

 
1. Summary 
 
1.1 Members requested a report on Early Years Special Educational Needs services. The 

attached report and appendices provide details about the current services available to 
children birth to five years who have special educational needs and  their families, 
significant achievements, and issues to be addressed.   

 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1   That the report be noted 
 

REASON: 
 
 
3. Consultation with Ward Councillors 
 
3.1 Not applicable 
 
4. Policy Context (including Relevant Previous Decisions) 
 
4.1 All authorities are required to have an Early Years Development and Childcare Plan.  

The 2003-04 Plan was approved by Members in January 2003. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 10
Pages 53 to 74

53



5.  Relevance to Corporate Priorities 
 
5.1 This report addresses the Councils Corporate Priority to promote Harrow as a centre of  

lifelong learning by offering the highest quality education services, by raising aspirations 
and outcomes of achievement and by providing activities for cultural, artistic and leisure 
pursuits which reflect the profile and the interests of all local communities. 

 
 
6. Background Information and options considered 
 
6.1 The Early Years Special Educational Needs Report is attached 
 
7. Consultation 
 
7.1 Not applicable 
 
8. Finance Observations 
 
8.1 There are no direct financial implications of this report. 
 
9. Legal Observations 
 
9.1 The requirements to have an early Years and Childcare Development Plan is contained 

in Section 120 of the Schools Standards and Framework Act 1998 as amended by the 
Education Act 2002. 

 
10. Conclusion 
 
10.1    That members note the content of the report 
 
11. Background Papers  
 
11.1 Early Years Development and Childcare Implementation Plan 2003-04 
 
12. Author 
 
12.1 Wendy Beeton, Early Years and Childcare Services Manager 

Telephone 020 8861 2583 
e-mail: wendy.beeton@harrow.gov.uk 
 

 
 

54



 1

 
 

 
1. Introduction 
This report has been compiled by officers in Education, Social Services and colleagues from the 
Harrow Early Years Development and Childcare Partnership’s Special Educational Needs 
Project Group.  The report provides information on: 
 
•  provision and support currently available to children from birth to age five who have special 

educational needs and their families 
•  areas of recent progress to increase the range of provision and support and to develop 

cohesion between the agencies that work with the children and their families. 
•  areas of work to be developed to improve cohesion and ensure, parents and carers 

understand what support and advice is available and young children who have special 
needs have improved outcomes. 

 
2. Services available 
Partnership working between health, education and social services provides a range of services 
for children with special educational needs, their families and early years settings who work to 
support them.  Details of these services, together with referral routes are given in appendix 1. 
 
3. Data 
The data attached as appendix 2 is provided by the Therapy Services at Northwick Park 
Hospital, Harrow Educational Psychology Service, Harrow Assessment and Provision Service, 
Portage and the Sensory and Communication Team. 
 
The data provides: 
•  Information about the number of Harrow children under 5 who have special educational 

needs  
•  The number of children seen by individual services 
•  The number of children in each category of special educational need. 
 
 
4. Assessment  
The assessment of children and their special educational needs is carried out over time.  
Parents and carers are included fully in the whole process and, wherever possible, the child 
also has involvement in the assessment process. 
 
Children born with obvious special needs are seen immediately after birth by paediatricians 
working in the hospital where they are born.  At Northwick Park hospital, paediatricians and 
other members of the Health Team ensure children and families are referred to professionals 
within the hospital.  They will also ensure referrals are made to relevant professionals or 
agencies working in the community e.g. a baby who is born with a visual impairment will be 
referred to the Sensory and Communication Team and possibly the Portage Team. 
 
Children whose needs are not obvious at birth but become apparent before the child’s second 
birthday are mainly identified by parents or by Health Visitors during routine development 
checks.  Parents usually seek advice and support from their GP or Health Visitor who then 
signpost them to the relevant agencies for support. 
 
From September 2003 a child with special educational needs and their family could also be 
referred to a social worker in the Children with Disabilities Team who will assess and provide 
services as appropriate. 
 

55



 2

Many children are not assessed as having special educational needs until they start pre-school 
or nursery class.  Staff working in early years settings who have concerns about a child’s 
progress can contact the Foundation Stage Area Special Educational Needs Co-ordinators 
(Area SENCOs) who will offer support and advice to the setting to help them meet the child’s 
development and learning needs. An Individual Education Plan (IEP)  or Individual Play 
Plan(IPP) is written and agreed with the child’s parents/carers. This stage of assessment is 
called Early Years Action. 
 
If the Individual Education or Play Plan is followed but the child’s development and learning 
progress is still of concern a decision will be taken to move the child onto Early Years Action 
Plus and involve other professionals including the Educational Psychology Service.   
 
If it is agreed that a child may need to have a statutory assessment a Learning Profile will be 
completed to assess the child’s cognition, communication and sensory skills. Consideration will 
also be given to the progress the child is making against the stepping stones in the Foundation 
Stage Curriculum.  
 
If, at the end of this comprehensive assessment process it is agreed that a statutory 
assessment is necessary the Foundation Stage Area SENCOs will support the setting to gather 
all the necessary information from professionals.  This information is then passed to the 
Assessment and Provision Team who initiate the formal statutory assessment process. 
 
5. Transition and progression to school 
The importance of a well-planned transition between the early years setting and the that school 
the child will be attending is critical.  There are current examples of good practice especially 
when the Foundation Stage Area SENCOs have been involved to provide support and guidance 
about the transition process. 
 
Transition is an area that needs to be worked at further to ensure that best practice occurs in all 
settings. 
 
6. Inclusion in Early Years Provision 
Supporting children in their formative years to be included in their local mainstream early years 
provision is the core principle underpinning the various strategies that are put in place by the  
Education Service, the Early Years Development and Childcare Partnership, Health, Social 
Services and other agencies.  
 
All agencies strive to deploy staff to work in local provision to support children’s progress and 
development.  Speech and language therapists, together with physiotherapists and 
occupational therapists, all see children in their local in-borough pre-school or nursery class 
where appropriate. Other professionals support children in their local early years provision, even 
where this is out of borough provision, wherever practicable.  
 
In line with government expectations, the growth bid approved by Members for the Early Years 
and Childcare Service has provided funding to recruit two Foundation Stage Area SENCOs.  
Their role is to work in Pre-schools, nurseries, nursery classes and Reception classes to 
support early years practitioners and teachers to develop strategies to 
 
•  assess the needs of children who have special educational needs 
•  assist staff in planning to meet the needs of those children and ensure they have access to a 

quality learning environment 
•  support staff to understand how relevant legislation impacts on their work e.g. the SEN Code 

of Practice. 
 

56



 3

The Early Years Development and Childcare Partnership allocates a ring fenced government 
grant of £26,187 to provide opportunities for early years children without statements of special 
educational need to be included in their pre-school.  Allocation of Inclusion funding* is against  
set criteria and for a limited period of time and must be approved by the Foundation Stage Area 
SENCOs. 
 
*This small amount of funding is also available for children (aged up to 16) with special educational needs to be 
included in out of school provision. 
 
7. Referral Routes for Pre school Provision 

 
                       
              
              
              
              
              
        Parental Referral      

       
 

                                                                       
                         

Parents are concerned about 
their child’s Development 

Portage undertake 
a 6 weeks 

assessment to 
agree with parents 

the need of the 
child and the best 

placement

Health 
Visitor

GP 

Paediatrician 

Speech and 
Language 
Therapist 

Occupational 
Therapist 

Physiotherapist 

Consultant 
Clinical 
Psychologist 

Education Referral is completed for either:  
•  Hillview Nursery Centre 
•  Gange Nursery Centre 
•  Herga Opportunity Pre-school 
•  Hageston Opportunity Pre-school   
 
The relevant Manager is contacted to identify if 
places are available and discuss the referral 
 
Papers are sent to Woodlands/Alexandra for 
placement.  The Assessment and Provision team 
are then notified so transport can be arranged if 
considered appropriate and agreed. 

Application is 
made for a 
place in local 
provision 

Inform Area 
SENCO about 
child’s placement 
so they can 
support the setting 

Child’s details 
are entered 
on the pre-
school 
database 

Decision made for 
child to continue 
receiving support 
from Portage 

Review 
and 
monitor 

Pre School 
Language
Unit 

Notify 
Educational 
Psychology 
Service

Social 
Worker

57



 4

Diagram 2 on page 5 shows the referral routes to provision.  Additional information about 
provision and how places are accessed can be found in Appendix 1. 
 
7.1 Special provision 
Where it is not practical or in the child’s best interests for them to be included in their local 
mainstream provision a range of  placements is available depending on their need.  The 
specialist provisions in Harrow are: 
 
•  Pre-school Language Unit 
•  Herga and Hageston Opportunity Playgroups 
•  Hillview and Gange Nursery Centres 
•  Alexandra Nursery  
•  Woodlands Nursery  
 
 
8. Management and Co-ordination of Early Years SEN Services 
The Early Years Development and Childcare Partnerships Special Educational Needs Project 
Group provides a forum for professionals to discuss early years special educational needs 
issues and improve joint working.  The Terms of Reference for the Project Group are attached 
as Appendix 2. 
 
The Project Group has representation from all sectors as demonstrated below in diagram 3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Diagram 3 
 
 
 
 
 

Special 
Educational 

Needs 
Project 
Group 

Voluntary 
Sector

Provision 

Social 
Services

Health

Education 

Therapy 
Services 

Early Years and 
Childcare 
 
Educational 
Psychology 
 
Arts and Leisure 
 
Youth and Community
 
Parent Partnership 
 
Assessment and 
Provision 
 
Access and 
Development 
 

National 
Autistic 
Society 
Harrow 
(NASH) 

Hillview 
Centre 

Children with 
disabilities 
team 

58



 5

Early Years SEN Support Services in the Education Department are managed as set out below 
in Diagram 4. 
 
 
 
                                     ……………………….  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                                    ……… 
 
 
Diagram 4 
 
9. Significant achievements 
Over the past 18 months there have been a number of significant developments in Harrow to 
support children in their early years who have special educational needs and their families. 
 
9.1 Appointment of the Early Years and Childcare Manager 
In June 2001 the Early Years and Childcare Manager was appointed to lead the work of the 
Early Years and Childcare Services Team and work across departments to lead initiatives and 
maximise opportunities for using Government Grant funding to improve service delivery. 
 
9.2 Nominated SENCOs 
In 2001 the Government, through the National Day Care Standards made it a requirement that 
every private and voluntary setting should have a trained member of staff who would have 
responsibility for children with special educational needs.  All 64 private and voluntary settings 
in Harrow have a Nominated SENCO.  Every nominated SENCO has completed the level 1 
training course and the majority have completed level 2 and 3. 
 
In 2003 a level 4 course has been provided to extend nominated SENCOs knowledge and 
understanding of their role and how to support children with special educational needs. 
 
9.3 Children with Disabilities Social Work Team 
This is a newly created team, who are providing a dedicated social work service to child with a 
disability and their families.  The age group is from birth to potentially 19 years with a planned 
transition process, where appropriate into Community Care Services for those who will continue 
to require services in adulthood.  
   
9.4 Early Bird 
In Autumn 2002 two Portage Home Visitors and two Speech and Language Therapists attended 
the National Autistic Society training in Barnsley to become accredited Early Bird trainers.   In 
March 2003 the first Harrow Early Bird programme commenced offering support to 4 families 
who have young children under five with an Autistic Spectrum Disorder diagnosis.  The Harrow 
Early Bird Programme will be run throughout the year at Hillview Centre by the 4 accredited 
trainers who work in pairs. 
 

Deputy Principal 
Educational 
Psychologist 

Early Years 
and 
Childcare 
Services 
Manager 

Children’s Services 
Manager and Principal 
Educational Psychologist 

Assessment 
and Provision 
Manager 

Sensory and 
Communication 
Team 

•  Senior Education Psychologist 
•  Portage Home Visitors 

Foundation Stage 
Area SENCOs 

Gange and 
Hillview 
Nursery 
Centres 

59



 6

The impact of the first Early Bird programme on families has been evaluated following 
guidelines set by the National Autistic Society.  A copy of the evaluation is attached as 
Appendix 3. 
 
9.5 Foundation Stage Area SENCOs 
In January 2003 the two appointed Foundation Stage Area SENCOs started working with early 
years settings in Harrow.  Their main aim is to support private, voluntary and maintained sector 
settings to provide a quality inclusive learning environment for children within the Foundation 
Stage.  
 
Since January 2003 the two Area SENCOs have provided support and advice to 9 pre-schools, 
6 nurseries and 17 schools on a range of issues including behaviour, transition and planning. 
 
9.6 Portage expansion 
In 2002 the Harrow Early Years Development and Childcare Partnership received, through the 
Childcare Grant, a ringfenced sum of money to support special needs early intervention 
strategies.   
 
Portage is a key early intervention support service that was struggling to meet the needs of an 
increasing number of families who have children needing structured support to reach their full 
developmental potential. A decision was made by the Partnership to use part of the Grant to 
fund an additional worker.  The employment of the worker has enabled the Early Bird 
Programme to run and has meant families needing urgent support are able to receive it.  All 
children are seen within 6 weeks from the referral being received, a significant improvement on 
the previous position.  
 
10. Issues to be addressed 
 
10.1 Disability Discrimination Act 
From September 2002 the Disability Discrimination Act 1995 (DDA) became applicable to all 
providers of early years services. The DDA has applied to the provision of childcare since it 
came into force in 1996.  At that time education was exempt from the DDA.  The Special 
Educational Needs and Disability Act 2001 brought in changes to both the special educational 
needs legislation and to the DDA.  The changes extend the coverage of the DDA to include 
education so that, from September 2002, it is unlawful to discriminate against disabled children 
in the provision of any service. 
 
The duties of the DDA apply to all early years settings whether or not they are in receipt of 
government funding.  There are two core duties under the DDA which apply to all settings:  
 
•  Not to treat a disabled child ‘less favourably’; 
 
•  To make ‘reasonable adjustments’ for disabled children 
 
10.2 Action being taken  
Additional training is being provided by the Area SENCOs, to support pre-school settings in 
understanding how this legislation applies to their work. An information booklet has also been 
distributed.  
 
Support is given to pre-schools who operate in church halls and multi-use buildings, to address 
these particular challenges to allow all children to be included.  The Early Years Development 
and Childcare Partnership can sometimes support settings to find ways to cover the costs of 
adjustments or adaptations.  
 

60



 7

10.3 Impact of Moving and Handling Legislation 
Legislation regarding moving and handling of children has been in place since 1992 but has had 
an increased impact since 2002 when the Special Educational Needs Disability Act (SENDA) 
came into force. This legislation has a number of implications for employers, practitioners and 
other agencies including: 
 
•  The requirement for all early years practitioners who work with children requiring moving and 

handling to receive basic level training which should be funded by the employer 
 
•  The need for employers who include children with physical disabilities to provide appropriate 

equipment such as hoists to minimise the risk to their employees.  All pieces of equipment 
need to be checked every 6 months by a qualified assessor. 

 
•  The need to ensure written risk assessments are in place. 
 
10.4 Action being taken 
The LEA will fund equipment for children to attend their local provision if the child is at Early 
Years Action Plus.  
 
Training is being provided to support pre-schools in how to carry out Risk Assessments. 
 
Basic level lifting and handling training will be funded by the Early Years Development and 
Childcare Partnership for all Foundation Stage Practitioners who need it.. 
 
 
11. Future Developments 
 
11.1 Woodlands First and Middle School 
Exciting plans are in place for Woodlands to be relocated a new building in 2005.  The new 
building will increase the capacity of Woodlands to 70 places and allow significant interaction 
with Little Stanmore First and Middle school. 
  
The headteacher, together with other professionals are keen to maximise the potential of the 
existing Woodlands site and the new building which will provide opportunities for  
 
•  staff working at Woodlands to disseminate their expertise to colleagues who are including 

children with special educational needs in mainstream schools 
•  increasing childcare facilities for children with special educational needs  
 
 
11.2 Transition  
In the Autumn Term 2003 improvements in the transition of all children between settings in the 
Foundation Stage will be introduced.  It is especially important that this is done to ensure 
children with special educational needs experience a quality transition process between pre-
school and school.  The work will include: 
 
•  Producing Transition information sheets which can be completed  with accurate, meaningful 

information by the setting where the child has attended and which will be used by the school 
receiving the child 

•  Providing training for those completing the sheets 
•  Providing training for SENCOs and other staff on the transition process 
 

61



 8

11.3 Tracking 
The appointment of the two Foundation Stage Area SENCOs means that some children who 
have received support to include them in early years settings will be tracked to monitor their 
progress as they go through school.  This process will enable professionals to assess whether 
the strategies in place have been effective and allow professionals the opportunity to reflect on 
ways to improve service delivery for young children with special educational needs, their 
families and the settings they attend. 
 
 
11.4 Training 
It is planned to continue running the level 1 to 4 training for nominated SENCOs and plans are 
underway to write a level 5 course for the 2004-05 training programme. 
 
Plans are underway to gain accreditation for the modularised Behaviour Management training 
course which is available to all Foundation Stage Practitioners.  Accreditation will mean that 
those undertaking the course can count it towards a National Vocational Qualification (NVQ) in 
Early Years and Childcare or Playwork.  
 
 
12 Monitoring Progress 
Guidance for the 2004-2006 Early Years Development and Childcare Strategic Plan has just 
been issued by the Department for Education and Skills.  The guidance requires the Local 
Authority and the Partnership to work together to further increase service cohesion and ensure 
early identification of special needs is at the heart of all service provision.   
 
The Plan will set milestone targets and the progress will be reported at full meetings of the Early 
Years Development and Childcare Partnership. The Strategic Plan will be presented for 
approval by Members in January 2004. 
 
 

62



 
1

       
Pr

ov
is

io
n 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

A
cc

es
s 

R
ou

te
 

Pe
op

le
 F

irs
t- 

pl
ac

em
en

ts
 

 
 

Pr
e-

sc
ho

ol
 L

an
gu

ag
e 

U
ni

t 
Th

e 
H

ar
ro

w
 P

re
-s

ch
oo

l L
an

gu
ag

e 
U

ni
t (

PS
LU

) i
s 

ru
n 

by
 a

 
vo

lu
nt

ar
y 

co
m

m
itt

ee
.  

H
ar

ro
w

 E
du

ca
tio

n 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t f
un

ds
 1

6 
pl

ac
es

 in
 th

e 
un

it 
fo

r c
hi

ld
re

n 
w

ho
 h

av
e 

be
en

 a
ss

es
se

d 
as

 h
av

in
g 

a 
le

ve
l o

f l
an

gu
ag

e 
im

pa
irm

en
t t

ha
t r

eq
ui

re
s 

a 
sp

ec
ia

lis
t r

es
ou

rc
e.

  
Th

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

t f
or

 p
la

ce
s 

at
 th

e 
PS

LU
 in

vo
lv

e 
th

e 
M

an
ag

er
 o

f 
th

e 
PS

LU
, t

he
ir 

at
ta

ch
ed

 S
pe

ec
h 

an
d 

La
ng

ua
ge

 T
he

ra
pi

st
 a

nd
 

Ed
uc

at
io

na
l P

sy
ch

ol
og

is
t. 

 

R
ef

er
ra

ls
 to

 th
e 

Pr
e-

sc
ho

ol
 

La
ng

ua
ge

 U
ni

t a
re

 m
ad

e 
by

 th
e 

Sp
ee

ch
 a

nd
 L

an
gu

ag
e 

Th
er

ap
is

ts
.  

 

H
er

ga
 O

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 P

la
yg

ro
up

 
A 

vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
co

m
m

itt
ee

 ru
ns

 H
er

ga
 O

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 P

la
yg

ro
up

.  
H

ar
ro

w
 E

du
ca

tio
n 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t f

un
ds

 8
 p

la
ce

s 
pe

r s
es

si
on

 fo
r 

ch
ild

re
n 

w
ith

 s
pe

ci
al

 e
du

ca
tio

na
l n

ee
ds

 w
ho

 h
av

e 
be

en
 a

ss
es

se
d 

as
 n

ee
di

ng
 to

 a
tte

nd
 a

 s
et

tin
g 

w
hi

ch
 h

as
: 

• 
hi

gh
er

 s
ta

ff 
- c

hi
ld

 ra
tio

s 
• 

a 
de

si
gn

at
ed

 E
du

ca
tio

n 
Ps

yc
ho

lo
gi

st
 

• 
st

af
f w

ith
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
of

 w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
w

ho
 h

av
e 

sp
ec

ia
l e

du
ca

tio
n 

ne
ed

s 
an

d 
th

ei
r f

am
ilie

s 
M

os
t p

la
ce

s 
at

 H
er

ga
 O

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 P

la
yg

ro
up

 a
re

 p
ar

t t
im

e.
 

A 
R

ef
er

ra
l f

or
 a

 p
la

ce
 a

t H
er

ga
 fo

r a
 

ch
ild

 w
ith

 s
pe

ci
al

 e
du

ca
tio

na
l n

ee
ds

 
is

 m
ad

e,
 in

 a
gr

ee
m

en
t w

ith
 th

e 
ch

ild
’s

 p
ar

en
t /

ca
re

r b
y:

 
• 

Po
rta

ge
 

• 
Sp

ee
ch

 a
nd

 L
an

gu
ag

e 
Th

er
ap

is
t 

• 
O

cc
up

at
io

na
l T

he
ra

pi
st

s 
• 

Ph
ys

io
th

er
ap

is
ts

 
• 

H
ea

lth
 P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
ls

 
• 

Te
ac

he
rs

 fr
om

 th
e 

Se
ns

or
y 

an
d 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

Te
am

  
H

ag
es

to
n 

O
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 P
la

yg
ro

up
 

As
 a

bo
ve

 
As

 a
bo

ve
 

Al
ex

an
dr

a 
N

ur
se

ry
 

Al
ex

an
dr

a 
m

ai
ns

tre
am

 N
ur

se
ry

 C
la

ss
, a

tta
ch

ed
 to

 A
le

xa
nd

ra
 

sp
ec

ia
l s

ch
oo

l o
ffe

rs
 3

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t p

la
ce

s 
fo

r t
he

 m
or

ni
ng

 a
nd

 
af

te
rn

oo
n 

se
ss

io
ns

.  
A 

pl
ac

e 
in

 A
le

xa
nd

ra
 N

ur
se

ry
 C

la
ss

 a
llo

w
s 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

s 
to

 
as

se
ss

: 
• 

W
he

th
er

 th
e 

ch
ild

 w
ill 

be
 a

bl
e 

to
 a

cc
es

s 
th

e 
cu

rri
cu

lu
m

 in
 a

 
m

ai
ns

tre
am

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t  

R
ef

er
ra

l f
or

 a
n 

as
se

ss
m

en
t  

pl
ac

e 
at

 
Al

ex
an

dr
a 

is
 m

ad
e 

fo
r a

 c
hi

ld
 w

he
n 

th
ey

 a
re

 o
ve

r 3
 a

nd
 it

 is
 u

nc
le

ar
 

w
he

re
 th

ei
r s

pe
ci

al
 e

du
ca

tio
na

l 
ne

ed
s 

w
ill 

be
 b

es
t m

et
. 

 R
ef

er
ra

l b
y 

Ed
uc

at
io

na
l P

sy
ch

ol
og

y 

63



 
2

• 
W

he
th

er
 a

 p
la

ce
 a

t A
le

xa
nd

ra
 S

pe
ci

al
 S

ch
oo

l i
s 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 

Al
ex

an
dr

a 
N

ur
se

ry
 C

la
ss

 h
as

 s
ta

ff 
w

ho
 a

re
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

ed
 a

t 
w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ho

 h
av

e 
co

m
pl

ex
 le

ar
ni

ng
 n

ee
ds

.  
Th

e 
N

ur
se

ry
 C

la
ss

 a
ls

o 
ha

s 
at

ta
ch

ed
 E

du
ca

tio
na

l P
sy

ch
ol

og
is

t a
nd

 
Sp

ee
ch

 a
nd

 L
an

gu
ag

e 
Th

er
ap

is
t. 

is
 th

e 
m

ai
n 

ro
ut

e 
to

 a
cc

es
si

ng
 a

n 
as

se
ss

m
en

t p
la

ce
.  

Th
e 

re
fe

rra
l i

s 
m

ad
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
a 

m
ul

ti-
di

sc
ip

lin
ar

y 
m

ee
tin

g.
 

 Pa
re

nt
s 

ca
n 

al
so

 re
qu

es
t a

 p
la

ce
 a

t 
Al

ex
an

dr
a 

if 
th

ey
 fe

el
 it

 is
 th

e 
be

st
 

pl
ac

em
en

t f
or

 th
ei

r c
hi

ld
. 

W
oo

dl
an

ds
 F

irs
t a

nd
 M

id
dl

e 
Sp

ec
ia

l S
ch

oo
l 

W
oo

dl
an

ds
 o

ffe
rs

 p
ar

t t
im

e 
pl

ac
em

en
ts

 to
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

2 
to

 5
 y

ea
rs

 
w

ho
 h

av
e 

ve
ry

 c
om

pl
ex

 n
ee

ds
, t

og
et

he
r w

ith
 h

ig
h 

le
ve

ls
 o

f c
ar

e 
ne

ed
s.

  M
os

t o
f t

he
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

at
te

nd
in

g 
W

oo
dl

an
ds

 h
av

e 
a 

st
at

ut
or

y 
as

se
ss

m
en

t c
om

pl
et

ed
 a

nd
 th

e 
ou

tc
om

e 
is

 th
at

 a
 p

la
ce

 
at

 a
 s

ch
oo

l f
or

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
w

ith
 s

ev
er

e 
le

ar
ni

ng
 d

iff
ic

ul
tie

s 
(S

LD
) i

s 
th

e 
m

os
t a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 p

la
ce

m
en

t. 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

of
fe

re
d 

a 
pl

ac
em

en
t a

t W
oo

dl
an

ds
 w

ith
ou

t a
 S

ta
tu

to
ry

 
As

se
ss

m
en

t u
su

al
ly

 h
av

e 
on

e 
in

iti
at

ed
 a

fte
r t

he
 fi

rs
t h

al
f t

er
m

. 

R
ef

er
ra

l f
or

 a
 p

la
ce

 a
t W

oo
dl

an
ds

 is
 

m
ad

e 
by

 th
e 

Ed
uc

at
io

na
l 

Ps
yc

ho
lo

gy
 S

er
vi

ce
.  

Th
e 

re
fe

rra
l i

s 
th

en
 p

as
se

d 
to

 th
e 

As
se

ss
m

en
t a

nd
 

Pr
ov

is
io

n 
Te

am
  w

ho
 a

gr
ee

 th
e 

pl
ac

em
en

t. 

H
ar

ro
w

 P
re

-s
ch

oo
ls

 
H

ar
ro

w
 h

as
 6

4 
Vo

lu
nt

ar
y 

Pr
e-

sc
ho

ol
s 

w
ho

 a
re

 re
gi

st
er

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
Ea

rly
 Y

ea
rs

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 C
hi

ld
ca

re
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
.  

Al
l p

re
-

sc
ho

ol
s 

ar
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 a

 h
ig

h 
qu

al
ity

 c
ur

ric
ul

um
 in

 li
ne

 
w

ith
 th

e 
Fo

un
da

tio
n 

St
ag

e.
  A

ll 
Pr

e-
sc

ho
ol

s 
ha

ve
 a

 n
om

in
at

ed
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

du
ca

tio
n 

N
ee

ds
 C

o-
or

di
na

to
r (

SE
N

C
O

) w
ho

 is
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 a
tte

nd
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 s

pe
ci

fic
al

ly
 d

es
ig

ne
d 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 th

em
 w

ith
 

tra
in

in
g,

 a
dv

ic
e 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t t

o 
fu

lfi
l t

he
 S

EN
C

O
 ro

le
. 

 M
os

t o
f t

he
 6

4 
Pr

e-
sc

ho
ol

 p
ro

vi
de

 in
cl

us
iv

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

an
d 

m
an

y 
of

 
th

em
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 h
ig

h 
qu

al
ity

 fo
un

da
tio

n 
cu

rri
cu

lu
m

 to
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ho

 
ha

ve
 s

pe
ci

al
 e

du
ca

tio
na

l n
ee

ds
  

Pa
re

nt
s/

ca
re

rs
 c

an
 a

pp
ly

 d
ire

ct
ly

 to
 

th
e 

pr
e-

sc
ho

ol
 o

f t
he

ir 
ch

oi
ce

 fo
r a

 
pl

ac
e 

fo
r t

he
ir 

ch
ild

. 
 If 

th
e 

ch
ild

 h
as

 h
ad

 n
o 

pr
ev

io
us

 
in

vo
lv

em
en

t f
ro

m
 a

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l a
nd

 
is

 a
ss

es
se

d 
as

 h
av

in
g 

sp
ec

ia
l 

ed
uc

at
io

na
l n

ee
ds

 th
e 

no
m

in
at

ed
 

SE
N

C
O

 in
 th

e 
pr

e-
sc

ho
ol

 w
ill 

w
or

k 
w

ith
 th

e 
pa

re
nt

s/
ca

re
rs

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

e 
ch

ild
 a

nd
 fa

m
ily

 re
ce

iv
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 s

up
po

rt 
an

d 
ad

vi
ce

. 
 Pr

e-
sc

ho
ol

s 
ca

n,
 w

ith
 th

e 
pe

rm
is

io
n 

of
 p

ar
en

ts
/c

ar
er

s 
co

nt
ac

t t
he

 
Fo

un
da

tio
n 

St
ag

e 
Ar

ea
 S

EN
C

O
s 

fo
r 

su
pp

or
t a

nd
 a

dv
ic

e.
 

H
illi

ve
w

 C
en

tre
/R

ox
et

h 
Fi

rs
t a

nd
 

M
id

dl
e 

Sc
ho

ol
 

H
illv

ie
w

 is
 a

 4
0 

pl
ac

e 
de

si
gn

at
ed

 E
ar

ly
 E

xc
el

le
nc

e 
C

en
tre

 a
nd

 
w

or
ks

 c
lo

se
ly

 w
ith

 th
e 

26
 p

la
ce

 n
ur

se
ry

 c
la

ss
 o

f R
ox

et
h 

fir
st

 a
nd

 
m

id
dl

e 
sc

ho
ol

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 ra
ng

e 
of

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 fo

r c
hi

ld
re

n 
ag

ed
 2

 

R
ef

er
ra

ls
 fo

r a
 p

la
ce

 a
t H

illv
ie

w
 c

an
 

be
 m

ad
e 

by
: 

• 
Pa

re
nt

s/
ca

re
rs

 

64



 
3

to
 4

 w
ho

 h
av

e 
sp

ec
ia

l e
du

ca
tio

na
l n

ee
ds

.  
10

 p
la

ce
s 

ou
t o

f t
he

 2
6 

in
 R

ox
et

h 
N

ur
se

ry
 C

la
ss

 h
av

e 
gu

ar
an

te
ed

 fu
nd

in
g 

to
 a

llo
w

 a
 

hi
gh

er
 n

um
be

r o
f c

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ith

 s
pe

ci
al

 n
ee

ds
 to

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

. 
 Pl

ac
es

 a
re

 a
ls

o 
of

fe
re

d 
to

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
w

ho
 h

av
e 

a 
ra

ng
e 

of
 s

oc
ia

l 
ne

ed
s 

e.
g.

 c
hi

ld
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
is

su
es

 

• 
Fa

m
ily

 H
ea

lth
 V

is
ito

r 
• 

Th
er

ap
is

ts
 

• 
Po

rta
ge

 
• 

So
ci

al
 W

or
ke

r 
R

ef
er

ra
ls

 fo
r H

illv
ie

w
 a

nd
 R

ox
et

h 
ar

e 
as

se
ss

ed
 a

nd
 p

la
ce

s 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

as
 a

va
ila

bl
e.

 
 

G
an

ge
 N

ur
se

ry
 C

en
tre

 
G

an
ge

 is
 a

 4
0 

pl
ac

e 
N

ur
se

ry
 C

en
tre

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 a

 ra
ng

e 
of

 p
la

ce
s 

fo
r c

hi
ld

re
n 

ag
ed

 2
 to

 5
.  

 
As

 a
bo

ve
 

Th
e 

Fi
rs

 
Th

e 
Fi

rs
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

a 
fle

xi
bl

e 
sh

or
t b

re
ak

 s
er

vi
ce

 fo
r c

hi
ld

re
n/

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 w
ho

 h
av

e 
a 

se
ve

re
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ilit
y.

  I
t i

s 
a 

fo
ur

 b
ed

de
d 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l u

ni
t t

ha
t c

ur
re

nt
ly

 o
ffe

rs
 o

ve
rn

ig
ht

 s
ta

ys
 a

nd
 a

fte
r 

sc
ho

ol
 te

a 
vi

si
ts

.  
D

ur
in

g 
th

e 
sc

ho
ol

 h
ol

id
ay

s 
a 

da
y 

se
rv

ic
e 

is
 

of
fe

re
d,

 ra
th

er
 th

an
 o

ve
rn

ig
ht

, w
ith

 a
 p

la
y 

sc
he

m
e 

al
so

 o
pe

ra
tin

g 
at

 a
 lo

ca
l v

en
ue

 in
 th

e 
su

m
m

er
 h

ol
id

ay
 p

er
io

d.
  D

ur
in

g 
th

e 
su

m
m

er
 h

ol
id

ay
 p

er
io

d 
so

m
e 

bl
oc

k 
bo

ok
in

gs
 fo

r l
on

ge
r o

ve
rn

ig
ht

 
st

ay
s 

ar
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 e
na

bl
e 

fa
m

ilie
s 

to
 ta

ke
 a

 h
ol

id
ay

 
 

R
ef

er
ra

ls
 c

an
 o

nl
y 

be
 m

ad
e 

by
 a

 
so

ci
al

 w
or

ke
r f

ro
m

 th
e 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
w

ith
 

D
is

ab
ilit

ie
s 

Te
am

. 

Ad
di

tio
na

lly
 R

es
ou

rc
ed

 S
ch

oo
ls

 
W

el
ld

on
 P

ar
k 

Fi
rs

t S
ch

oo
l 

El
m

gr
ov

e 
Fi

rs
t S

ch
oo

l  
C

ed
ar

s 
Fi

rs
t S

ch
oo

l 
 

W
el

ld
on

 P
ar

k 
– 

ha
s 

8 
pl

ac
es

 w
ith

 g
ua

ra
nt

ee
d 

fu
nd

in
g 

fo
r 

ch
ild

re
n 

w
ho

 h
av

e 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
la

ng
ua

ge
 im

pa
irm

en
t. 

 T
he

 s
ch

oo
l h

as
 

di
sc

re
tio

n 
on

 h
ow

 th
e 

pl
ac

es
 a

re
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

sc
ho

ol
. 

El
m

gr
ov

e 
– 

ha
s 

6 
pl

ac
es

 w
ith

 g
ua

ra
nt

ee
d 

fu
nd

in
g 

fo
r c

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ho

 h
av

e 
ph

ys
ic

al
 d

is
ab

ilit
ie

s 
    C

ed
ar

s 
– 

ha
s 

12
 p

la
ce

s 
w

ith
 g

ua
ra

nt
ee

d 
fu

nd
in

g 
fo

r c
hi

ld
re

n 
w

ho
 

ha
ve

 a
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t h
ea

rin
g 

im
pa

irm
en

t a
nd

 n
ee

d 
a 

to
ta

l 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t t
o 

re
ac

h 
th

ei
r f

ul
l l

ea
rn

in
g 

po
te

nt
ia

l 

W
el

ld
on

 P
ar

k 
– 

ap
pr

ov
al

 fo
r o

ne
 o

f 
th

e 
8 

La
ng

ua
ge

 re
so

ur
ce

 p
la

ce
s 

is
 

m
ad

e 
by

 th
e 

As
se

ss
m

en
t a

nd
 

Pr
ov

is
io

n 
Pa

ne
l f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
st

at
ut

or
y 

as
se

ss
m

en
t. 

El
m

gr
ov

e 
– 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
w

ho
 a

tte
nd

 
El

m
gr

ov
e 

us
ua

lly
 h

av
e 

a 
St

at
ut

or
y 

As
se

ss
m

en
t i

n 
pl

ac
e 

w
hi

ch
 s

ta
te

s 
th

at
 E

lm
gr

ov
e 

is
 th

e 
m

os
t 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 p

la
ce

m
en

t t
o 

m
ee

t t
he

 
ch

ild
 n

ee
ds

. 
C

ed
ar

s 
– 

ap
pr

ov
al

 fo
r a

 p
la

ce
 a

t 
C

ed
ar

s 
is

 m
ad

e 
by

 th
e 

As
se

ss
m

en
t 

an
d 

Pr
ov

is
io

n 
Pa

ne
l f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
st

at
ut

or
y 

as
se

ss
m

en
t. 

 

65



 
4

Pe
op

le
 F

irs
t S

up
po

rt
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

 
 

Po
rta

ge
 

Th
e 

H
ar

ro
w

 P
or

ta
ge

 S
er

vi
ce

 h
as

 3
.7

 fu
ll 

tim
e 

w
or

ke
rs

 w
ho

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

ag
ed

 b
irt

h 
to

 5
 w

ho
 a

re
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

as
 h

av
in

g 
de

la
ye

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
nd

 th
ei

r f
am

ilie
s.

  T
he

 w
or

ke
rs

 v
is

it 
th

e 
ch

ild
re

n 
an

d 
fa

m
ilie

s 
in

 th
ei

r o
w

n 
ho

m
es

 a
nd

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 s

tru
ct

ur
ed

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
of

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 w

hi
ch

 a
im

s 
to

 s
up

po
rt 

th
e 

ch
ild

 in
 

re
ac

hi
ng

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ta
l m

ile
st

on
es

. 
 Th

e 
Po

rta
ge

 h
om

e 
vi

si
to

rs
 a

ls
o 

su
pp

or
t c

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ho

 th
ey

 h
av

e 
w

or
ke

d 
w

ith
 to

 s
et

tle
 in

to
 th

ei
r p

re
-s

ch
oo

l, 
nu

rs
er

y 
cl

as
s 

or
 o

n 
oc

ca
si

on
s 

re
ce

pt
io

n 
cl

as
se

s 
 Po

rta
ge

 w
or

k 
cl

os
el

y 
w

ith
 P

ae
di

at
ric

 T
he

ra
pi

st
s,

 P
ae

di
at

ric
ia

ns
 a

t 
N

or
th

w
ic

k 
Pa

rk
 H

os
pi

ta
l, 

Ed
uc

at
io

na
l P

sy
ch

ol
og

is
ts

 a
nd

 te
ac

he
rs

 
in

 th
e 

Se
ns

or
y 

an
d 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

Te
am

. 
 Po

rta
ge

 s
ta

ff 
ca

n 
re

co
m

m
en

d 
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 a
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 fo
r c

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ho

 h
av

e 
co

m
pl

ex
 n

ee
ds

 a
nd

 w
ho

se
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

at
 E

ar
ly

 Y
ea

rs
 

Ac
tio

n 
Pl

us
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

m
on

ito
re

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
re

gu
la

r s
up

er
vi

si
on

 
m

ee
tin

gs
 w

ith
 th

e 
Ed

uc
at

io
na

l P
sy

ch
ol

og
y 

Se
rv

ic
e 

R
ef

er
ra

ls
 to

 P
or

ta
ge

 c
an

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
by

: 
• 

pa
re

nt
s 

• 
H

ea
lth

 V
is

ito
rs

 
• 

Pa
ed

ia
tri

ci
an

 
• 

Th
er

ap
is

ts
 

R
ef

er
ra

ls
 a

re
 a

ss
es

se
d 

an
d 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
to

 a
 h

om
e 

vi
si

to
r w

ho
 th

en
 

ar
ra

ng
es

 to
 v

is
it 

th
e 

ch
ild

 a
nd

 fa
m

ily
 

 

Fo
un

da
tio

n 
St

ag
e 

Ar
ea

 S
EN

C
O

s 
H

ar
ro

w
 h

as
 2

 F
ou

nd
at

io
n 

St
ag

e 
Ar

ea
 S

EN
C

O
s 

w
ho

 w
or

k 
to

 
su

pp
or

t p
re

-s
ch

oo
l a

nd
 s

ch
oo

ls
 to

 in
cl

ud
e 

ch
ild

re
n 

w
ith

 s
pe

ci
al

 
ed

uc
at

io
na

l n
ee

ds
. 

 Bo
th

 A
re

a 
SE

N
C

O
s 

w
or

k 
to

 s
up

po
rt 

th
e 

te
ac

hi
ng

 s
ta

ff 
de

ve
lo

p 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
ch

ild
re

n 
w

ith
 s

pe
ci

al
 e

du
ca

tio
na

l n
ee

ds
 a

re
 

fu
lly

 in
cl

ud
ed

 a
nd

 e
na

bl
ed

 to
 a

cc
es

s 
a 

qu
al

ity
 le

ar
ni

ng
 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

Pr
e-

sc
ho

ol
 a

nd
 s

ch
oo

ls
 c

an
 c

on
ta

ct
 

th
e 

Ar
ea

 S
EN

C
O

s 
di

re
ct

ly
.  

A 
re

fe
rra

l f
or

m
 m

us
t b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 
w

hi
ch

 d
et

ai
ls

 th
e 

su
pp

or
t t

he
 p

re
-

sc
ho

ol
 o

r s
ch

oo
l f

ee
l t

he
y 

ne
ed

.  
 

Ed
uc

at
io

n 
Ps

yc
ho

lo
gi

st
s 

H
ar

ro
w

 h
as

 a
 g

ro
up

 o
f i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 E
du

ca
tio

na
l P

sy
ch

ol
og

is
ts

 w
ho

 
w

or
k 

in
 p

re
-s

ch
oo

ls
 to

 m
on

ito
r t

he
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ith

 s
pe

ci
al

 n
ee

ds
. 

 Ed
uc

at
io

na
l P

sy
ch

ol
og

is
ts

 o
ffe

r a
dv

ic
e 

an
d 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 a

t E
ar

ly
 

Ye
ar

s 
Ac

tio
n 

Pl
us

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt 

th
e 

ea
rly

 y
ea

rs
 s

et
tin

gs
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

ch
ild

re
n 

w
ho

 re
qu

ire
 S

ta
tu

to
ry

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

R
eq

ue
st

s 
fo

r E
du

ca
tio

na
l 

Ps
yc

ho
lo

gy
 in

vo
lv

em
en

t c
an

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
by

 
• 

Pr
e-

sc
ho

ol
s 

• 
Sc

ho
ol

s 
• 

Pa
re

nt
s 

• 
Po

rta
ge

 

66



 
5

• 
So

ci
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
• 

O
th

er
 H

ea
lth

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

ls
 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
w

ith
 D

is
ab

ilit
ie

s 
So

ci
al

 
W

or
k 

Te
am

 
Th

is
 is

 a
 n

ew
ly

 c
re

at
ed

 te
am

 w
ho

 a
re

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 a

 d
ed

ic
at

ed
 s

oc
ia

l 
w

or
k 

se
rv

ic
e 

to
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ith

 a
 d

is
ab

ilit
y 

an
d 

th
ei

r f
am

ilie
s.

  T
he

 
ag

e 
gr

ou
p 

is
 fr

om
 b

irt
h 

to
 1

9 
ye

ar
s 

w
ith

 a
 p

la
nn

ed
 tr

an
si

tio
n 

pr
oc

es
s,

 w
he

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 in

to
 C

om
m

un
ity

 C
ar

e 
Se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r 
th

os
e 

w
ho

 w
ill 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 re

qu
ire

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
in

 a
du

lth
oo

d 

R
ef

er
ra

ls
 c

an
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

by
 

• 
Th

e 
ch

ild
 

• 
Pa

re
nt

/c
ar

er
 

• 
An

y 
pr

of
es

si
on

al
 

• 
M

em
be

r o
f t

he
 c

om
m

un
ity

 
Se

ns
or

y 
an

d 
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
Te

am
 

Th
e 

Se
ns

or
y 

an
d 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

Te
am

 c
on

si
st

s 
of

 th
re

e 
pa

rts
: 

H
ea

rin
g 

Im
pa

irm
en

t, 
Vi

su
al

 Im
pa

irm
en

t a
nd

 A
ut

is
tic

 S
pe

ct
ru

m
 

D
is

or
de

rs
. 

 Th
e 

H
ea

rin
g 

Im
pa

ire
d 

an
d 

Vi
su

al
ly

 Im
pa

ire
d 

pa
rts

 o
f t

he
 te

am
 

w
or

k 
w

ith
 p

up
ils

 fr
om

 b
irt

h,
 o

ffe
rin

g 
ad

vi
ce

 a
nd

 s
tra

te
gi

es
 to

 
su

pp
or

t t
he

 e
ar

ly
 y

ea
rs

 s
et

tin
g 

in
 m

ee
tin

g 
th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ith

 a
 s

en
so

ry
 im

pa
irm

en
t. 

 Th
e 

Au
tis

tic
 S

pe
ct

ru
m

 D
is

or
de

rs
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 te
am

 w
or

ks
 w

ith
 

sc
ho

ol
 a

ge
 p

up
ils

 w
ith

 a
 s

ta
te

m
en

t o
f S

pe
ci

al
 E

du
ca

tio
na

l N
ee

ds
. 

 St
af

f i
n 

al
l p

ar
ts

 w
or

k 
to

 s
up

po
rt 

ch
ild

re
n 

ac
ce

ss
 m

ai
ns

tre
am

 
ed

uc
at

io
n.

  
 St

af
f a

ls
o 

ad
vi

se
 o

n 
th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r a
 c

hi
ld

 to
 h

av
e 

a 
St

at
ut

or
y 

As
se

ss
m

en
t 

R
ef

er
ra

l t
o 

th
e 

H
ea

rin
g 

Im
pa

ire
d 

an
d 

Vi
su

al
ly

 Im
pa

ire
d 

te
am

s 
ar

e 
m

os
tly

 m
ad

e 
by

 H
ea

lth
 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

s.
 

As
se

ss
m

en
t a

nd
 P

ro
vi

si
on

 T
ea

m
 

Th
e 

As
se

ss
m

en
t a

nd
 P

ro
vi

si
on

 T
ea

m
 a

dm
in

is
te

r a
nd

 c
o-

or
di

na
te

 
th

e 
st

at
ut

or
y 

as
se

ss
m

en
t a

nd
 re

vi
ew

 p
ro

ce
ss

 fo
r c

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ith

 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

sp
ec

ia
l e

du
ca

tio
na

l n
ee

ds
 w

ho
 re

qu
ire

 a
 S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

du
ca

tio
na

l N
ee

ds
. 

 Tr
an

sp
or

t f
or

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
w

ith
 s

pe
ci

al
 e

du
ca

tio
na

l n
ee

ds
 is

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
by

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t a

nd
 P

ro
vi

si
on

 o
n 

a 
ne

ed
s 

le
d 

ba
si

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

ch
ild

re
n 

w
ho

 re
qu

ire
 a

 s
pe

ci
al

is
t r

es
ou

rc
e 

w
hi

ch
 is

 n
ot

 th
ei

r l
oc

al
 

m
ai

ns
tre

am
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 c
an

 a
cc

es
s 

th
is

. 

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

s 
or

 p
ar

en
ts

 c
an

 c
on

ta
ct

 
th

e 
As

se
ss

m
en

t a
nd

 P
ro

vi
si

on
 

Te
am

 to
 re

qu
es

t a
 S

ta
tu

to
ry

 
As

se
ss

m
en

t f
or

 a
 c

hi
ld

. 

Pa
re

nt
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

H
ar

ro
w

 P
ar

en
t P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 is

 a
 s

er
vi

ce
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 a

ll 
H

ar
ro

w
 

pa
re

nt
s 

w
ho

 h
av

e 
a 

ch
ild

 w
ith

 s
pe

ci
al

 e
du

ca
tio

na
l n

ee
ds

.  
It 

ai
m

s 
Pa

re
nt

s 
ca

n 
m

ak
e 

di
re

ct
 c

on
ta

ct
 

w
ith

 th
e 

Pa
re

nt
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
. 

67



 
6

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 s

up
po

rt 
an

d 
ad

vi
ce

 to
 p

ar
en

ts
; t

o 
he

lp
 p

ar
en

ts
 to

 m
ak

e 
in

fo
rm

ed
 d

ec
is

io
ns

 a
bo

ut
 th

ei
r c

hi
ld

’s
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 b

et
w

ee
n 

pa
re

nt
s 

an
d 

pr
e-

sc
ho

ol
 o

r s
ch

oo
ls

 a
nd

 th
e 

 
Lo

ca
l E

du
ca

tio
n 

Au
th

or
ity

 fo
r t

he
 b

en
ef

it 
of

 th
e 

in
di

vi
du

al
 c

hi
ld

. 

 Pr
of

es
si

on
al

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

Vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
 c

an
 s

ug
ge

st
 to

 a
ny

 
pa

re
nt

s 
th

ey
 h

av
e 

co
nt

ac
t w

ith
 th

at
 

th
ey

 c
on

ta
ct

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

Ea
rly

 B
ird

 
Th

e 
Ea

rly
 B

ird
 is

 a
 n

at
io

na
lly

 re
co

gn
is

ed
 in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
fo

r p
ar

en
ts

 w
ho

 h
av

e 
pr

e-
sc

ho
ol

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
w

ith
 a

 d
ia

gn
os

is
 o

f a
n 

au
tis

tic
 S

pe
ct

ru
m

 D
is

or
de

r (
AS

D
). 

Th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

is
 ru

n 
in

 
H

ar
ro

w
 a

t t
he

 H
illv

ie
w

 C
en

tre
 b

y 
2 

Po
rta

ge
 w

or
ke

rs
 a

nd
 2

 S
pe

ec
h 

an
d 

La
ng

ua
ge

 T
he

ra
pi

st
s.

 

R
ef

er
ra

ls
 fo

r a
 p

la
ce

 o
n 

th
e 

Ea
rly

 
Bi

rd
 P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
ca

n 
be

 m
ad

e:
 

• 
D

ire
ct

ly
 b

y 
pa

re
nt

s 
• 

By
 p

ae
di

at
ric

ia
ns

 
• 

O
th

er
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
ls

 in
vo

lv
ed

 w
ith

 
th

e 
ch

ild
 a

nd
 fa

m
ily

 
 

Fa
m

ily
 L

in
k 

Sc
he

m
e 

Th
is

 is
 a

 s
pe

ci
al

is
t s

er
vi

ce
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 s
ho

rt 
br

ea
k 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
to

 
ch

ild
re

n 
w

ith
 a

 d
is

ab
ilit

y 
an

d 
th

ei
r f

am
ilie

s.
  E

ve
ry

 e
ffo

rt 
is

 m
ad

e 
to

 
en

su
re

 th
at

 a
 c

ar
er

s 
is

 m
at

ch
ed

 w
ith

 a
 c

hi
ld

’s
 c

ul
tu

ra
l a

nd
 

re
lig

io
us

 n
ee

ds
. 

C
ar

er
s 

– 
th

is
 is

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f a
n 

in
di

vi
du

al
, f

am
ily

 b
as

ed
 c

ar
er

 fo
r 

an
 in

di
vi

du
al

 c
hi

ld
.  

Th
e 

ch
ild

 g
oe

s 
to

 th
e 

ca
re

r’s
 h

om
e 

an
d 

co
ul

d 
re

ce
iv

e 
an

y 
of

 a
 v

ar
ie

ty
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g:

 
• 

Te
a 

br
ea

ks
 

• 
D

ay
 c

ar
e 

• 
O

ve
rn

ig
ht

 s
ta

ys
 

• 
Ex

te
nd

ed
 s

ta
ys

 
Th

e 
m

ax
im

um
 n

um
be

r o
f d

ay
s 

in
 a

 y
ea

r i
s 

28
 d

ep
en

di
ng

 o
n 

th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 th
e 

ch
ild

. 
Si

tti
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

 –
 th

is
 is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 a

 v
er

y 
lim

ite
d 

se
rv

ic
e 

w
ith

 
w

or
ke

rs
 e

m
pl

oy
ed

 o
n 

an
 h

ou
rs

 ra
ge

 to
 g

o 
in

to
 th

e 
ch

ild
’s

 h
om

e.
 

R
ef

er
ra

ls
 c

an
 o

nl
y 

be
 m

ad
e 

by
 a

 
so

ci
al

 w
or

ke
r f

ro
m

 th
e 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
w

ith
 

D
is

ab
ilit

ie
s 

Te
am

. 
  

H
ea

lth
 (N

or
th

w
ic

k 
Pa

rk
 

H
os

pi
ta

l) 
 

 

Sp
ee

ch
 a

nd
 L

an
gu

ag
e 

Th
er

ap
y 

A 
te

am
 o

f S
pe

ec
h 

an
d 

La
ng

ua
ge

 T
he

ra
pi

st
s 

w
or

k 
w

ith
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ith

 a
 w

id
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

ne
ed

s.
  A

s 
w

el
l a

s 
se

ei
ng

 
ch

ild
re

n 
in

di
vi

du
al

ly
 in

 th
e 

C
ha

uc
er

 U
ni

t a
t N

or
th

w
ic

k 
Pa

rk
 th

e 
th

er
ap

is
ts

 a
ls

o 
se

e 
m

an
y 

of
 th

e 
ch

ild
re

n 
in

 th
ei

r n
ur

se
ry

 o
r p

re
-

sc
ho

ol
 o

r a
t t

he
 lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
ity

 c
lin

ic
s 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h.
 

R
ef

er
ra

ls
 to

 S
pe

ec
h 

an
d 

La
ng

ua
ge

 
Th

er
ap

y 
ca

n 
be

 m
ad

e 
• 

D
ire

ct
ly

 b
y 

pa
re

nt
s 

• 
By

 o
th

er
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
ls

 w
or

ki
ng

 
w

ith
 th

e 
fa

m
ily

 
Ph

ys
io

th
er

ap
y 

Ph
ys

io
th

er
ap

is
ts

 a
ss

es
s 

an
d 

tre
at

 p
re

-s
ch

oo
l c

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ho

 h
av

e 
a 

R
ef

er
ra

l f
or

 P
hy

si
ot

he
ra

py
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

68



 
7

ra
ng

e 
of

 g
ro

ss
 m

ot
or

 n
ee

ds
 a

nd
 w

ho
 m

ay
 n

ee
d 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 
sp

ec
ia

lis
t e

qu
ip

m
en

t. 
 

ar
e 

m
ad

e 
by

: 
• 

Th
e 

fa
m

ily
 G

P 
• 

H
ea

lth
 V

is
ito

r 
• 

A 
pa

ed
ia

tri
ci

an
 

• 
O

th
er

 T
he

ra
pi

st
s 

O
cc

up
at

io
na

l T
he

ra
py

 
A 

te
am

 o
f O

cc
up

at
io

na
l T

he
ra

pi
st

s 
w

or
k 

to
 a

ss
es

s 
an

d 
tre

at
 p

re
-

sc
ho

ol
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ho

 h
av

e 
a 

va
rie

ty
 o

f d
iff

ic
ul

tie
s 

w
ith

: 
• 

Fi
ne

 m
ot

or
 s

ki
lls

 
• 

Se
lf 

ca
re

 a
nd

 p
er

so
na

l i
nd

ep
en

de
nc

e 
• 

Se
at

in
g 

an
d 

po
si

tio
ni

ng
 

• 
Pl

ay
 

Th
e 

O
cc

up
at

io
na

l T
he

ra
pi

st
s 

ca
rry

 o
ut

 a
n 

in
iti

al
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t o
f 

th
e 

ch
ild

s 
ne

ed
s 

at
 th

e 
C

ha
uc

er
 U

ni
t. 

 F
ol

lo
w

 u
p 

w
or

k 
is

 o
fte

n 
ca

rri
ed

 o
ut

 a
t t

he
 p

re
-s

ch
oo

l o
r n

ur
se

ry
 c

la
ss

 th
at

 th
e 

ch
ild

 
at

te
nd

s.
 

R
ef

er
ra

l f
or

 O
cc

up
at

io
na

l T
he

ra
py

 
Se

rv
ic

es
 a

re
 m

ad
e 

by
: 

• 
Th

e 
fa

m
ily

 G
P 

• 
A 

Pa
ed

ia
tri

ci
an

 
• 

O
th

er
 T

he
ra

pi
st

s 
• 

H
ea

lth
 V

is
ito

rs
 

• 
Sc

ho
ll 

N
ur

se
s 

Pa
ed

ia
tri

c 
Th

er
ap

y 
gr

ou
ps

  
A 

Pl
ay

 L
ea

de
r a

nd
 T

he
ra

py
 te

am
 ru

n 
5 

Pa
ed

ia
tri

c 
Th

er
ap

y 
gr

ou
ps

 fo
r c

hi
ld

re
n 

un
de

r 3
 w

ho
 h

av
e 

sp
ec

ia
l n

ee
ds

 a
nd

 th
ei

r 
pa

re
nt

s 
an

d 
ca

re
rs

. 
 Th

e 
gr

ou
ps

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
n 

op
po

rtu
ni

ty
 fo

r c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
th

ei
r p

ar
en

ts
 

to
 w

or
k 

in
 a

 o
ne

 to
 o

ne
/s

m
al

l g
ro

up
 s

et
tin

g 
w

ith
 th

e 
th

er
ap

y 
te

am
 

w
ith

 th
e 

ai
m

 o
f f

ac
ilit

at
in

g 
so

ci
al

, c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n,

 p
hy

si
ca

l a
nd

 
pl

ay
 s

ki
lls

. 

R
ef

er
ra

ls
 to

 th
e 

Th
er

ap
y 

G
ro

up
s 

ar
e 

m
ad

e 
by

 th
e 

Th
er

ap
is

ts
 w

or
ki

ng
 

w
ith

 th
e 

ch
ild

 a
nd

 fa
m

ily
 

 

69



70

This page is intentionally left blank



 1

Early Years Special Educational Needs Data 
 
Introduction 
The data in this appendix is provided by a number of different teams.  All teams collect and 
collate data for different reasons and this is reflected in the way the data is presented. 
 
The data provides: 
•  Information about the number of Harrow children under 5 who have special educational 

needs  
•  The number of children seen by individual services 
•  The number of children in each category of special educational need. 
 
 
Northwick Park Hospital Therapy Data 
 
Speech and Language Therapy 420 
Occupational Therapy 96 
Physiotherapy 77 
Table 1 – numbers of children allocated to therapy services at June 2003.  For the purposes of this data children 
have only been counted once against the primary service they receive 
 
Special Educational Need Descriptor Number 

of 
children 

With  
statement 

Will 
require 
additional 
support in 
school 

No 
additional 
support  
required 

Autistic Spectrum Disorder 17 8 9 0 
Physical Disability 
In absence of significant cognitive 
impairment 

22 0 16 6 

Profound and multiple learning 
difficulty (PMLD) 
 

23 13 10  

Specific Language impairment 54 0 41 13 
Speech/ language delay 200 0 49 151 
Developmental Delay including severe 
and moderate learning difficulty 

66 3 58 5 

Complex needs  19 2 16 1 
Stammering/non fluency 23 0 0 23 
Feeding difficulties 10 0 3 7 
Hearing Loss (sensory neural) 4 0 4 0 
Table 2  

 
Educational Psychology Data 
For the academic year 2002-2003 there were 22 pupils undergoing statutory procedures for 
Special Educational Needs who were not in nursery classes 
 

71



 2

For the academic year 2001-2002 there were 41 pupils undergoing statutory procedures for 
Special Educational Needs who were not in nursery classes. 
 
The data in the previous paragraph is demonstrated below in more detail 
Academic 
year  

Specific 
Language 
Needs 

Autistic 
Spectrum 
Disorder 

Other Physical 
Disabilit
y 

Visual 
Impairment 

Hearing 
Impairment 

09/02 – 
07/03 

7 10 4 4 3 2 

09/01 
07/02 

6 14 15 5 0 1 

 Table 3 
 
Assessment and Provision Data  
The table below show the number of children with statements and the category of special 
educational need 
 
Statements  Nursery Reception  
PMLD – Profound and multiple learning 
difficulties 

I 4 
 

ASD Autistic Spectrum Disorder  6 19 
 

Visually Impaired 
 

 2 

Hearing Impaired 
 

 3 

Specific Language 
 

I 2 

Specific Language 
 

I 2 

PD Physical Difficulties, including complex  
issues related to feeding and toileting 

4 3 

Other – includes syndromes such as Down, 
Cornelia de Lange, Kleinefelter, 

4 8 

Table 4 
 

Portage Data 
At June 2003 Portage were working with 66 children.  Currently all of these children are known 
to health professionals and or members of the Sensory and Communication Team, ( SACT) 

 
Under three years Over three years but under 

five 
36 30 

Table 5 
 
Sensory and Communication Team Data 
The Sensory and Communication Team Teachers of the Deaf monitor 26 pupils aged 0-5 years  
 
13 have Statements of Special Educational Need.  2 are in special school placements, 15 are 
currently placed in nursery centres where staff are trained in British Sign Language. 

72



 3

 
The Sensory and Communication Team Teachers of the Visually Impaired monitor 24 pupils 0- 
5  years  
 
6 have statements of SEN 3 of whom are in special placements 
1 is currently being assessed 
2 have the ongoing involvement of Portage and may require something specialised in the future 
  

73



74

This page is intentionally left blank



 
LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW 

 
 
 

Meeting: 
 

Joint Health & Social Care and Lifelong Learning Scrutiny Sub-
Committees.  

Date: 
 

17 September 2003. 

Subject: 
 

“Taking Care of Education” (The Gatsby Project). Report on the 
completion of the Project. 

Key decision: 
 

No 

Responsible 
Chief Officer: 
 

 Executive Director People First. 

Relevant 
Portfolio Holder: 
 

 Social Services and Education & Lifelong Learning. 

Status: 
 

Part 1. 

Ward: 
 

All. 

Enclosures: 
 

Appendix 1: OC2 2000,2001 and 2002. 

 
1. Summary 
 
1.1 This report outlines the progress made with the implementation of “Taking Care 

of Education” (The Gatsby Project). The report highlights some of the preliminary 
headline findings of the evaluation of the project and notes that Harrow has been 
invited to submit a bid to the Gatsby Charitable Foundation for a further three 
years funding of the project. 

 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 To note and comment on the report. 
 
 
3. Consultation with Ward Councillors 
 
3.1      Not applicable. 
 
4. Policy Context  
 
4.1 The report provides an update to the reports received by the Scrutiny Committee  
            in September 2001 and the Education Arts and Leisure Committee in October  
            2001. 
 
 
5.  Relevance to Corporate Priorities 
 

Agenda Item 11
Pages 75 to 82

75



5.1 This report addresses the Council’s Corporate Priorities to: promote Harrow as a 
centre of lifelong learning by offering the highest quality education services; raise 
aspirations and outcomes of achievement; provide activities for cultural, artistic and 
leisure pursuits which reflect the profile and the interests of all local communities; and 
improve the life chances of young people and promote social inclusion. 

 
6. Background Information  
 
6.1 The London Borough of Harrow was one of three local authorities selected to take 

part in an initiative, in partnership with the National Children’s Bureau (NCB) and the 
Gatsby Charitable Foundation, called “Taking Care of Education”, known in Harrow 
as the Gatsby Project. The project started in Harrow in September 2000 and was 
allocated a total of £357,000 to cover the three years of the initiative. £189,000 to 
cover salary costs and £168,000 for the development of projects. (Due to an under-
spend in the salary budget, the Foundation has agreed to fund the Project Director’s 
post for a further year from September 2003). Release of funds was subject to 
project proposals being submitted to and agreed by the NCB/Gatsby Reference 
Group. 

  
6.2 The initiative is essentially an action research project which aims to identify what is 

effective in bringing about improvements in the educational performance of Children 
Looked After and what are the processes involved in establishing and maintaining a 
whole authority approach. 

 
6.3 Projects were identified following an Investment Audit (this is a NCB assessment tool 

which evaluates educational provision and practice for Children Looked After), an 
analysis of research evidence and discussions with the Harrow Gatsby Reference 
Group. This group was made up of representatives from the two departments, 
schools and the Health Authority. 

 
6.4 The NCB Research Department and the University of Luton are undertaking the 

evaluation of the project. The evaluation aims to: highlight which aspects of the 
development project are effective in bringing about changes in the education of 
Children Looked After; identify any changes in the well-being of a sample of young 
people and their attitudes to education and school; ascertain the views of young 
people on their education and care experiences and how they think these could be 
enhanced; and highlight barriers to the implementation of the desired approaches 
between agencies. The methodology involves gathering baseline information on 
educational outcomes for Children Looked After and analysing policy and practice. It 
also involves regular interviews with key personnel in Education and Social Services 
and with a sample of young people who are Looked After. 

 
6.5 Below is an overview of the developments and initiatives undertaken as part of 

the Harrow Gatsby Project. 
 
6.6 The previous Education Arts and Leisure and Social Services Committees and the 

Cabinet have adopted a set of Corporate Parenting Principles for the education of 
Children Looked After to guide the Education and Social Services Departments in 
working together to meet the educational needs of Children Looked After. This 
statement is being embedded in various service plans across the two departments. 
Many services have produced written statements as to how, in practical ways, they 
will support the education of Children Looked After. 

 

76



6.7  There are now two versions of Personal Education Plans (PEPs), one for children 
under 5 and one for children of compulsory school age. In the academic year 2001-
2002, 100% of PEPs were completed by social workers. These were audited and 
recommendations made as to how the quality of PEPs could be improved. Additional 
training sessions have been made available for all practitioners and managers in the 
Children and Families Service in Social Services. 

 
6.8 During the course of the Gatsby Project, the collection and sharing of data and 

information has improved. Information on numbers of Children Looked After, school 
places, year groupings and PEP status is now regularly produced and shared. 
Attainments, attendance and exclusion data is now systematically collected. 

 
6.9 Training for social care staff, designated teachers and staff from Education Services 

has taken place. A guidance book on PEP completion has been produced for social 
workers and a similar guide for designated teachers is in progress. Elected Members 
were also briefed as to their role as Corporate Parents.  

 
6.10 An annual Celebration of Educational Achievement Awards Ceremony has been 

established. The first event took place in October 2002 and was held at the Civic 
Centre where over eighty children, young people, carers and officers gathered to 
celebrate the achievements of Children Looked After by Harrow.  

 
6.11 An Educational Psychologist post for Children Looked After, jointly funded by Gatsby 

and the Education Department, has been created. The main focus of the post is to 
undertake direct and group work with children and young people that will enable 
them to become resilient and self confident, allowing them to be more likely to 
achieve their full educational potential. The post holder has also made a significant 
contribution in providing advice to out of authority schools where Children Looked 
After attend. This post has been sustained by funding from the Vulnerable Children 
Grant in the Education Department. 

 
6.12 A Youth Participation post in the Community and Youth Service has been created 

with joint funding from Gatsby and Comic Relief. The remit of this post is to 
undertake direct work with Children Looked After with the aim of increasing their 
participation in activities such as the Harrow Young People’s Forum as well as 
mainstream youth activities.  

 
6.13 A Teaching post for Children Looked After has been created. The aim of the post is 

to provide an initial educational response to Children Looked After, to keep them 
engaged in education and to support their reintegration into a new school place. As 
yet, it has not been possible to recruit to this post. However, the post has recently 
been readvertised and interviews are taking place in September. 

 
6.14 The provision of a free leisure card for Children Looked After has been piloted. The 

Arts and Leisure Service, foster carers, residential social workers and Leisure 
Connection PLC supported the pilot. Such was the success that the Council is to 
provide a leisure card to Children Looked After by Harrow, this autumn. 

 
6.15 A range of projects, aiming to increase the awareness and to develop the skills of 

foster carers and residential social workers, in supporting and encouraging the 
acquisition of literacy and numeracy skills by Children Looked After, have been 
undertaken. The National Literacy Association and the Education Department’s 

77



Advisory Team supported projects such as “Book of My Own”, “Reading 
Roadshows”, “Maths Counts” and Literacy workshops. 

 
6.16 Another project that seeks to encourage literacy development has been the 

distribution of Library Welcome packs to Children Looked After. The packs contain 
information about joining a library and what libraries have to offer children and young 
people. The packs are distributed to all of Harrow’s Children Looked After with 
specific information on the nearest local library for those placed outside of Harrow. 

 
6.17 The literacy theme was also developed in Harrow’s two Children’s Homes. Again in 

collaboration with Harrow Library Services, supplies of books, both academic and 
non-academic, have been provided for use by the children and young people. 

 
6.18 In collaboration with Harrow Library Services, an After School Club was successfully 

piloted during the summer term at Gayton Library. The Club was aimed at children 
who were of middle school age and it attracted between 8-10 regular attendees. The 
Club met once a week for two hours and provided a range of activities such as 
craftwork, board games, snooker, table football and full use of the facilities in the 
library including access to the internet. 

 
6.19  During the course of the project, a number of photography workshops were held. 

These were organised in partnership with the Arts and Leisure Service, Harrow 
College and Kodak PLC. Such was the success, The National Portrait Gallery 
organised a two-day workshop for the young people, enabling them to develop their 
portraiture skills using professional equipment and facilities. The work of the young 
people has been exhibited at the Civic Centre and at the Harrow Arts Centre. 

 
6.20 As part of the work of the Gatsby Project, computer equipment has been provided for 

the use of young people in the two Children’s Homes and at the Leaving Care office. 
 
6.21 A mentoring scheme, in partnership with the Harrow Mentoring Project, has also 

been piloted for Children Looked After between the age of 11-16. This initiative is 
primarily aimed at Children Looked After who are in foster or residential placements 
outside of Harrow. 

 
6.22 Main findings of the national Children’s Bureau evaluation. 
 
6.23 To date, the NCB Research Department has produced four Evaluation Reports and 

two reports of findings from the sample of young people whose views and progress 
have been tracked. At the time of writing this report, the evaluation is still work in 
progress and, as such, a conclusive final evaluation is not available for inclusion 
here.  

 
6.24 A number of interesting findings have emerged. In relation to the formative or 

process analysis of the project itself, the researchers have consistently referred to 
the good progress made in Harrow and in the most recent report it is noted that the 
”level of progress achieved is to be commended”.  

 
6.25 It is also encouraging to note that during the course of the project, significant 

progress has been made in raising the outcome educational achievements of 
Harrow’s Children Looked After (this includes children educated in schools outside of 
Harrow). This is indicated in the OC2 return to the Department of Health (Appendix 
1). There has been significant progress in meeting the Government’s target of 

78



increasing the number of students with at least one GCSE. In 2002, 92.9% of 
Children Looked After gained a GCSE, compared with 46.2% in 2000. 64.3% 
achieved at least 5 GCSE’s grade A*-G in 2002 compared with 23.1% in 2000. For 
the first time in three years, no Children Looked After within the OC2 cohort were 
permanently excluded from school and the level of absence from school improved 
from 13.3% in 2000 to 6.52% in 2002. Further work is now needed to ensure 
students achieve 5 GCSE’s at grade A*-C. 

 
6.26 Although the researchers noted the progress made with the Gatsby Project, their 

caveat to this, was to suggest that there is a need for a considerable amount of work 
to be undertaken before the education of Children Looked After becomes part of 
mainstream policy and practice and this may have been due to an over reliance on 
the Gatsby Project to deliver improvements.  

 
6.27 A second issue identified by the researchers concerned the Personal Education Plan 

(PEP) process. Here, it was identified in the young people’s sample that a number of 
young people are as yet unaware of PEPs and there were some indications that 
plans are being developed without young people’s knowledge and that this is likely to 
undermine the potential for such plans to support young people’s education.  

 
6.28 The evaluation is also beginning to throw some light on the views and attitudes of 

Children Looked After by Harrow as they have been recorded during the course of 
the project. Standardised testing of the Harrow sample suggests that young people 
were now placing greater value upon education and had an improved sense of 
school membership as measured by their attitude to schooling. There was also a 
marked increase in self-esteem ratings among the sample of young people. This is of 
interest given the number of project activities directed towards improving resilience 
and self-esteem.  

 
6.29 However, the improvements in young people’s self-esteem and psychological well 

being could be the corollary of living in a settled supportive environment. According 
to the young people themselves, the most important factor in promoting educational 
success was the availability of a supportive care placement within which carers 
valued education and encouraged young people to succeed. The absence of such 
support was seen, as a central feature of explanations forwarded by young people 
whose achievement is less positive.  

 
6.30 These findings have led the researchers to suggest that the ideal scenario for 

Children Looked After may be to maximise the supportive benefits of care 
placements through the opportunity to remain in them for a considerable period of 
time. Where placement change does arise, this need not be detrimental provided 
young people can experience similar or even enhanced levels of support in 
subsequent placements. 

 
6.31 In July of this year, the Portfolio Holders for Social Services and for Education and 

Lifelong Learning, together with the Executive Director for People First and the 
Gatsby Project Director met with a representative of the Gatsby Charitable 
Foundation. The outcome of this meeting was an invitation for Harrow to bid for 
further funding to enable the initiative to continue for a further three years. 

 
6.32 It is anticipated that the Trustees of the Gatsby Charitable Foundation will consider 

Harrow’s bid in October. If the bid is successful, the additional funding will enable 
Harrow to sustain some of the activities already undertaken. This would include the 

79



arts and leisure pursuits and work with foster carers. Additional funding would also 
allow for the development of some new projects, for example, an advisory teacher 
post to develop the Personal Social and Health Education and Citizenship curriculum 
and to appoint teaching assistants for Children looked After.   

 
7. Consultation 
 
7.1 Paragraphs 6.27 and 6.28 above, summarise some of the views of young people  

gather by the independent researchers who were evaluating the project. 
 
8. Finance Observations 
 
8.1 There are no direct financial implications within this report.  Spending on the project 

is closely monitored against income in a “ring fenced” budget. The current financial 
position is summarised in paragraph 6.1. If the bid for further funding is successful, 
this will enable an extension of the project to take place.  

 
9. Legal Observations 
 
9.1 Local Authorities have a statutory duty under the Children Act 1989 to safeguard and 

promote the welfare of children in their care. Opportunity for a reasonable level of 
educational achievement is an important aspect of this duty under the Act. A 
demonstrable failure on the part of local authorities in the past to provide such 
opportunities and the generally low level of educational achievement of Children 
Looked After has led to much criticism by central government and other informed 
observers. 

 
10. Conclusion 
 
10.1 The implementation of the Gatsby Project in Harrow has identified a number of 

activities that have engaged and supported the education of Children Looked After. It 
has also made a contribution to a piece of research that will inform the understanding 
of how to achieve the highest possible educational outcomes for Children Looked 
After.   

 
11. Background Papers  
 
11.1 “Taking Care of Education” (The Gatsby Project). Scrutiny Committee, 25 September 

2001. 
11.2 Progress report on the implementation of “Taking Care of Education” (The Gatsby 

Project), Education Arts and Leisure Committee, 3 October 2001. 
11.3 “Taking care of Education” Setting the Scene. Preliminary Evaluation Report. NCB 

May 2001 
11.4 “Taking Care of Education”. Young People’s Sample. Interim Findings. NCB 

December 2001. 
11.5 “Taking Care of Education in Harrow”.  Process Evaluation Report. NCB March 2002. 
11.6 “Taking Care of Education in Harrow”.  Evaluation Report. NCB July 2002. 
11.7 “Taking Care of Education in Harrow”.  Evaluation Report. NCB February 2003. 
11.8 “Taking Care of Education” Evaluation. Young People’s Sample Follow-up Findings. 

July 2003. 
 
 
 

80



12. Author 
 
12.1 Gerry Dermody, Project Director, The Gatsby Project. 

Telephone 020 8728 8836 
e-mail: gerry.dermody@harrow.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

81



 
 
Appendix 1 OC2 2000, 2001 & 2002  
 
Children Looked after for 1 year or more on 30 September of the reporting year 
 
 

OC2 2000 OC2 2001 OC2 2002* 

Number of CLA of compulsory 
school age 75 80 94 

Number of CLA permanently 
excluded in the period 3 4.0% 3 3.8% 0 0.0% 

Number of children who missed 25 
days or more days of schooling for 
any reason 

10 13.3% 8 10.0% 6 6.52%

Number of children eligible to take 
GCSE'S 13 10 14 

Number who sat at least 1 GCSE  6 46.2% 5 50.0% 13 92.9%

Number who obtained at least 1 
GCSE grade A*-G 5 38.5% 5 50.0% 13 92.9%

Number who obtained at least 5 
GCSE grade A*-G 3 23.1% 3 30.0% 9 64.3%

Number who obtained at least 5 
GCSE grade A*-C 2 15.4% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 

 
                                                                 (Data source: Children’s Quality Information Team) 
 

82



 
LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW 

 
 
 
Meeting: 

 
Joint Meeting of the Lifelong Learning and Health & Social Care 
Scrutiny Sub-Committees 

 
Date: 

 
17 September 2003 

 
Subject: 

 
Progress on Healthy Lifestyles in Schools Review  

 
Relevant Portfolio Holder: 

 
Portfolio Holder for Education and Lifelong Learning 

 
Status: 

 
Part I 

 
Ward: 

 
All Wards 
 

Enclosure: Summary of Progress 
 

 
1. Summary  
 

This report provides an update of progress following a review carried out by the 
Lifelong Learning Scrutiny Sub-Committee during 2002-03. 

 
2.       Recommendations 
 
2.1     That the Sub-Committee notes the progress made since the review 

 
3.  Relevance to Corporate Priorities 
 
3.1  The report is particularly relevant to the priorities to: 
 

•  Promote Harrow as a centre of lifelong learning 
•  Improve the quality of health and social care. 

 
4. Background 
 
4.1 At its meeting on 8 April 2003, the Lifelong Learning Sub-Committee received a report 

of the Review Group on Healthy Lifestyles in Schools. The Sub-Committee endorsed 
the recommendations in the report, subject to some amendments. Following referral to 
the Portfolio Holder for Education and Lifelong Learning, a progress report was 
considered by the Lifelong Learning Sub-Committee at its meeting on 30 June.  It was 
also agreed that the progress would be considered at this joint meeting. 
 

4.2 Appendix 1 lists the recommendations from the report, together with details of the 
action taken since April. 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 12
Pages 83 to 88

83



5. Consultation 
 
5.1 The review included consultation with those schools which were visited in order to help 

inform Members’ recommendations. 
 
6.  Financial Observation 
 
6.1  There are no financial implications. 
 
7.  Legal Observation 
 
7.1  There are no legal implications. 
 
8.  Background Papers 
 
8.1  Healthy Lifestyles in Schools Review, Lifelong Learning Scrutiny Sub-Committee, April 

2003. 
 

Response to the Sub-Committee Reviews in 2002-03, Lifelong Learning Scrutiny Sub-
Committee, June 2003.  
 

9. Author 
 
9.1 Michael Hart, Interim Director of Education/Head of Children and Community Services 

020 8424 1985 
michael.hart@harrow.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

84



 
 

Appendix 1 

Lifelong Learning Scrutiny Sub-Committee Review 
 

Healthy Lifestyles in Schools 
 

Recommendation Response 
 
(i)     That the variety and quality of free school meals       
        (packed lunch provision) be urgently addressed.     
 

 
i This was referred to the Head of  
      Contract Services.  The Tuck Box 
      menu was revised for new menu  
      launch in September 2003. 
 

 
(ii)    That the free school meals (packed lunch provision) 
        be additionally assessed in order to ensure that the  
        quantity of food was appropriate to the age of the  
        child consuming it. 

 
i The Head of Contract Services 

reported that, since the 
implementation of the Tuck Box in 
1995, all menus have been 
subject to review by the 
Community Dietician to ensure 
compliance with relevant 
standards. 

 
 
(iii)   That schools encourage PSHE co-ordinators to  
        attend the termly meetings as well as explore  
        other means for the exchange of ideas. 
 

 
i  Termly meetings are publicised  
      through the INSET programme  
      and the Curriculum Leader  
      PSHE also send out reminders. 
 
i  The next issue of Kaleidoscope  
      (for all schools) will be on  
      Healthy Schools – to be  
      published this term. 
 
i  The PSHE web site will be  
      updated. 
 
i  Good practice will be shared at  
      the Healthy Schools celebration   
      in September 2003. 
 

 
(iv)   That all schools be encouraged to consider ways  
        in which water can be made freely available to all  
        pupils throughout the school day without incurring  
        extra financial cost to pupils.   
 

 
 

 
i  Providing water in schools will  
      be an article in the next Healthy  
      Schools newsletter – to share  
      successful practice. 
 
 
 

85



Recommendation Response 
 
        (Note that Health and Safety guidelines, in relation  
        to the accessibility of water during certain lessons,  
        eg. science, be adhered to). 
 
 

 
i It is intended that a high school  

joining the Healthy Schools 
programme (in the next  
recruitment phase) should be   

      approached to pilot ways to 
      make water accessible. 
 

 
(v)    That the Health and Social Care Scrutiny Sub- 
        Committee be requested to work with the PCT to  
        examine ways in which resources allocated to  
        school nurses could be increased.  Members felt  
        that the role of the school nurse was very important  
        and it was felt that increased involvement and  
        activity of school nurses with pupils, parents and  
        staff would be highly beneficial to schools. 
 

 
i  A reference was made from the  
      Lifelong Learning Scrutiny Sub- 
      Committee to the Health and  
      Social Care Sub-Committee at  
      its meeting on 18th June 2003, in  
      order that discussion can be  
      considered at this joint meeting of 
      these Sub-Committees. 
 
•  The Head of Children and 

Community Services has been 
meeting with the Consultant 
Paediatrician at Northwick Park 
Hospital who line manages the 
School Nursing Service, in order 
to make most effective use of the 
available resources and to seek 
ways of providing locally co-
ordinated teams that include 
health visitors, community nurses 
and school nurses. 

 
 
(vi)   That ways be explored of explaining the nutritional  
        values of foods served from school canteens: eg.  
        primary schools’ canteens could use pictorial  
        examples, eg. a skeleton/bones to show that the  
        food was high in calcium, whereas secondary  
        schools could classify the different food groups, eg.  
        ‘low in fat’ or ‘high in fibre.’ 

 
i The Head of Contract Services 

has explained that nutritional  
values will be demonstrated in 
ways appropriate to the 
customers’ age group at  schools’ 
cafeterias, operated by the 
Council’s Catering Service, from 
September 2003. 

 
i  Schools will be encouraged in  
      the Healthy Schools  
      programme, working on the  
      theme of healthy eating, to look  
      at ways to promote nutritional  
      values and healthy eating. 
 
i  There will be liaison with Food  
      Technology curriculum  
      development. 

86



Recommendation Response 
 
(vii)   That schools be encouraged to actively work with  
         parents in relation to getting the healthy lifestyles  
         message across. 
 
 
 
 

 

 
i  Schools will be encouraged to  
      promote healthy lifestyles  
      through the Healthy Schools  
      programme, eg. launch of  
      programme at parents’  
      evenings, information through  
      school newsletters. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
i  Schools will continue to be  
      encouraged to work with  
      parents when sharing policies,  
      eg. drug policy and specific  
      events, eg. Eat 2b Fit campaign  
      and National School Fruit  
      Scheme. 
 
i  Schools involved in the Healthy  
      Schools programme will be  
      advised of the benefits of  
      having a parent representative  
      on the task group. 
 
i  Plans are underway for sessions  
      on health for parents to be  
      piloted through the Family  
      Learning programmes in schools. 

 
(viii)  That a copy of the final scoping report on Healthy  
         Lifestyles in Schools be sent to governing bodies in 
         Order for governors to encourage healthy lifestyles  
         With their individual schools. 

 
i  This was sent to all Chairs of  
      Governing Bodies on 7th May. 
 
 
 

 
(ix)    That schools be requested to designate a governor 
         to oversee the promotion of healthy lifestyles in  
         schools. 

 
i Letter was sent in July to Chairs  
      of Governors and they were  
      reminded at the Chairs’ Briefing  
      with Director. 
 

 
(x)     That a report be received at the joint meeting of the 
         Lifelong Learning Scrutiny Sub-Committee and  
         Health and Social Care Scrutiny Sub-Committee,  
         which would outline steps taken to implement the  
         findings of the Scrutiny Review Group. 

 
i This report is being submitted to 

the joint meeting. 

 
(xi)   That specialist colleges be encouraged to share  
        and develop their expertise and facilities with their   
        cluster schools and the wider community. 

 
i This is being carried forward as 

part of Harrow’s approach to 
developing specialist colleges. 

87



 
 

 

88



LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW 
 
 

Meeting: 
 

Joint Meeting of the Lifelong Learning and Health and Social Care 
Scrutiny Sub-Committees 
 

Date: 
 

17 September 2003  
 

Subject: 
 

Update on the development of the People First Directorate 

Key decision: 
 

No 

Responsible 
Chief Officer: 
 

Executive Director – People First 

Relevant 
Portfolio Holders 
 

Portfolio Holder for Education and Lifelong Learning 
Portfolio Holder for Social Services 

Status: 
 

Part 1 

Ward: 
 

All 

Enclosures: 
 

Nil 

 
1. Summary/ Reason for urgency (if applicable) 
 
1.1 This report is made available at the request of the Chair of the Lifelong Learning Scrutiny 

Sub-Committee and is intended to chart the progress of this new Council Directorate and 
the services for which it is responsible. 

 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1      To consider the report and comment on developments to date 
 
 
 
3. Consultation with Ward Councillors 
 
3.1 Not applicable at this stage. 
 
4. Policy Context (including Relevant Previous Decisions) 
 
4.1 The new Council Directorates and the associated top management structure were 

approved by the Cabinet within the context of the New Harrow Project following a report 
of the Chief Executive to Members in July 2002. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 13
Pages 89 to 96

89



5.  Relevance to Corporate Priorities 
 
5.1 The development of the Directorate of People First is intended to address two principal 

corporate strategic priorities, as follows: 
5.2 To promote Harrow as a centre of lifelong learning by offering the highest quality 

education services, by raising aspirations and outcomes of achievement, and by 
providing activities for cultural, artistic and leisure pursuits which reflect the profile and 
the interests of all local communities. 

5.3 To improve the quality of health and social care in Harrow by improving the life chances 
of children, by promoting and maximizing the independence of disabled, frail and 
chronically ill people, and by ensuring appropriate levels of safe care and support for 
those not able to live independently.  

 
6. Background Information  
 
 Executive Director – People First 
 
6.1 The Executive Director – People First was appointed in November 2002. However, at 

that time he was carrying the full role and responsibility of Director of Education. Until 
interim management arrangements were made to cover his duties, he had limited time 
and flexibility to commit to his new remit. Those interim arrangements were secured by 
January 2003 when the three Heads of Service in the Education Department became 
Interim Joint Directors of Education. This arrangement prevailed until 31 August 2003 
when the Head of Children and Community Services in the Education Department took 
full responsibility as Interim Director and Chief Education Officer.  

 
6.2 The role of the Director of Social Services has been fulfilled over recent months by an 

Acting Chief Social Services Officer who will continue in this role until the launch of the 
new Directorate. 

 
Progress towards a new structure – critical service drivers 

 
6.3 In November and December 2002 the Executive Director consulted principally with those 

most affected by the management changes approved by Cabinet, namely the Heads of 
Service in the Education and the Social Services Departments. In January, the views 
emerging from these earlier meetings were tested at further meetings with management 
teams and certain key stakeholders, including Headteachers and the Harrow Primary 
Care Trust (PCT). The appropriate Portfolio Holders were also consulted, as were the 
Nominated Members. 

 
6.4 As a result, proposals were made for the development of a new structure predicated 

upon a number of critical service needs identified during discussions. There was strong 
agreement that the structure must be designed around the most efficient service planning 
and delivery. The drivers for change which emerged consistently in discussions were: 

 
•  Placing the service user at the centre of services 
•  Effective preventative services 
•  Strengthened holistic support, particularly for the most vulnerable 
•  Speed of response to emerging and identified user needs 
•  Streamlined approaches to communication 
•  Integrated older people’s services with a single system of assessment and care 
•  Community services locally based 

90



•  Services to empower the individual, promote independence and increase capacity 
to take control 

•  Sharing information on clients and communities 
•  Maintenance and improvement of existing service performance 

 
6.5 Staff also gave views on potential reconfigurations to address the critical service needs 

which included  
 
•  Integrated health and social care services for older people 
•  Generic support for children and families 
•  Integrated services for children with disabilities 
•  Children’s social work services 
•  Ethnic minority achievement and asylum seeker support 
•  Parent support 
•  Early years and childcare and play schemes 
•  Learning across the community  
•  Quality assurance and performance management 
•  Joint service planning and procurement 
•  Administrative efficiencies 
•  Combined resource services 
 
The principles which lie behind these proposals were carefully considered and reflected 
in the proposed organisational arrangements for the new Executive Directorate for 
People First. 
 

6.6 Important too for staff, key stakeholders and for the inspectorates which provide support 
and challenge for the authority were the statutory roles which existed in the former 
structure. These were the Directors of Education and Social Services, the Council’s Chief 
Officers responsible for the planning, delivery and performance of Education and Social 
Services within current legislative frameworks. The point was made that these 
responsibilities should be located at the most senior position possible in the new Council 
structure. The post holders should be in a position to exercise real decision making 
power and to have a clear line of accountability to the Chief Executive, to elected 
members, to the service users and to the wider partnerships with which they engage. 

 
New organisational  structure for People First 

 
6.7 From these considerations, an organisational structure has developed which has met 

with general consensus. The outline is attached as Appendix A.  Members may recall 
that the Cabinet agreed to additional Chief Officers for the Directorate on the grounds 
that it is the largest in the Council with the most staff and with the biggest budget. 
Paragraphs below give an outline of the remit of each of the Departments within the new 
Directorate. 

 
6.7 Children Services will concentrate wholly on services to children and their families. This 

will provide both universal and targeted services to enhance life chances for all children 
and young people. The Chief Officer who will lead and manage this division will be 
nominated the statutory post holder for Social Services. 

 
6.8 Learning and Community Development will concentrate both on improving learning 

and achievement across the age ranges and promote increased social inclusion in the 

91



local community. The Chief Officer who will lead and manage this division will be 
nominated the statutory post holder for Education. 

 
6.9 People First Strategy will direct and co-ordinate planning and service review and 

manage key support services to achieve the objectives of the People First Directorate 
 
6.10 Community Care Services will be a transitional arrangement and whose time scale as a 

stand-alone unit is dependent on work undertaken to assess the feasibility of relocating 
community care provided services with the PCT. This division will concentrate largely on 
promoting independence for adults and older people and improving their quality of life 
and by ensuring appropriate levels of safe care and support for those not able to live 
independently. 

 
6.11 The Council’s agreed management structure also allows for an Area Director – People 

First. This post will manage one of three areas into which Harrow is being divided and 
will have joint responsibility for ensuring key People First services are operating 
effectively across the three areas of the Borough in addition to managing all area-based 
services within his or her own strategic area.  

 
Recruitment to new top management posts 
 
6.12 At the time of preparing this report, recruitment is now almost complete to the top 

management posts in People First. Since these are Chief Officer posts, all of the 
appointments have been made by the Council’s Appointments Panel. Where there has 
been external recruitment, assessment centres have been organized and key 
stakeholders have been actively involved in the selection process, giving advice to the 
Members. 

 
6.13 The following is the current situation on these posts: 
 
Director of Children’s 
Services 

Paul Clark Currently Deputy 
Director Children, 
Schools and Families 
with Herts County 
Council 

Starting 
29 September 2003 

Director of Learning & 
Community 
Development 

Javed Khan Currently Assistant 
Director Lifelong 
Learning with 
Birmingham City 
Council 

TBA 

Director of People 
First Strategy 

Geoff Wingrove Formerly Head of 
Education Strategy & 
Resources with LB 
Harrow 

In post 

Head of Community 
Care (transitional) 

Nick Georgiou Currently Acting Chief 
Social Services 
Officer with LB 
Harrow 

Starting 
29 September 2003 

Area Director – 
People First 

TBA TBA Appointments Panel 
on 11 September 
2003 

 
 

92



 
6.14 It is expected that the new Directorates across the Council will be launched on 1 October 

2003. In the case of People First, functions previously found within the Education and 
Social Services Departments will be allocated to their new Departments within People 
First, as shown in the Appendix. 

 
6.15 From that time, and earlier where Directors are already in post, further more detailed 

discussions will be taking place with staff within their new Departments. This is to ensure 
they have the best opportunity to make an important and productive contribution to the 
redesigning and, where appropriate, reconfiguration of current service teams to meet 
service need.  

 
6.16 From this process new structures will emerge which are fit for the purposes of the New 

Harrow Project and, where relevant, its customer-focused area-based service delivery 
approaches. Consultation will then follow, formally with staff, and with relevant 
stakeholders to ensure all views have been appropriately captured and taken into 
account. 

  
Statutory Officers 
 
6.17 Members will have noted paragraph 6.6 on this issue. The organisational structure for 

People First gives the Directors of Children’s Services and Learning and Community 
Development integrated themed responsibilities for Children and Young People and 
Learning across the Community respectively. They also have statutory responsibilities as 
Chief Officers for Social Services and for Education respectively. 

 
6.18 Certain of their statutory responsibilities will be directed and managed outside their line 

management responsibilities,. For example, the statutory responsibility for special 
education needs is held by the Director of Learning and Community Development as 
Chief Education Officer but line managed by the Director of Children’s Services. By 
contrast, the statutory responsibility for older people’s social services are held by the 
Director of Children’s Services as Chief Social Services Officer but line managed by the 
Head of Community Care. Therefore, they will have the further duty in supporting the 
Executive Director to ensure that robust mechanisms are in place to fulfil the statutory 
responsibilities and account to the Chief Executive, Elected Members and the 
community. 

 
6.19 In this respect, the Chief Executive proposes to hold meetings with all the Council’s 

statutory officers on at least a quarterly basis to ensure statutory responsibilities are 
being satisfactorily fulfilled. 

 
People First Service Roll-Out – Community Schools 
 
6.20 Discussions have taken place with 2 of the 3 school clusters currently working on the 

education components of the Council’s Local Public Service Agreement (LPSA). These 
are the Rooks Heath and Canons clusters of schools which had identified their 
commitment to co-ordinated support for underachieving pupils and those at risk of social 
exclusion. The schools have been enthusiastic about playing a part in the roll-out of the 
New Harrow Project and, by many measures of disadvantage, fulfil the requirements for 
more targeted support by the Council and other partners. 

 
6.21 It is planned that in the Autumn, particular teams of staff from People First will be working 

with the school clusters to continue to raise expectations of achievement, to support 

93



children who are vulnerable and at risk and their families, to promote social inclusion 
broadly across the area of the school cluster, and to engage the schools more actively 
with quality of life issues in their local communities.  

 
6.22 This will be supported further by work being done at officer level within the Harrow 

Strategic Partnership’s Children’s Executive with key staff from Harrow Primary Care 
Trust who see the new approach to supporting children and families locally as helping to 
address key issues of health inequalities. 

 
6.23 Each of these initiatives will be treated as a pilot activity, will be carefully planned with 

appropriate key performance measures and will be subject to proper evaluation upon 
completion in order to test the effectiveness of new arrangements before further roll-out. 

 
6.22 It may be useful for Members to bear in mind that the roll-out of People First services will 

depend on the priorities and needs of each locality/school cluster and could lead to 
different configurations of services in different areas of the Borough. 

 
People First Service Roll-Out – Integrated Service Provision for Adults & Older People 
 
6.22 Detailed work is also being undertaken at officer level together with the Harrow Primary 

Care Trust to scope a project which seeks to develop integrated service provision for 
adults and older people by April 2005. This is wholly in line with the National Service 
Framework for Older People and is predicated upon the desire to present adults and 
older people with a “seamless” service and single care pathway.  

 
6.23 The scope of the project covers all services provided for older people and services for 

adults with physical disabilities. At the same time, work is taking place to refine 
relationships and business practices within the Harrow Unified Mental Health Service. It 
is intended that this project will be reported to the Cabinet in October and to the Board of 
the Harrow Primary Care Trust in parallel. 

 
6.24 Learning Disability services will become the responsibility of the Council within the same 

time frame and PCT services will join local authority services within the Learning and 
Community Development Department of People First. 

 
6.25 The Council still has statutory responsibilities for the services which will be the subject of 

integration and appropriate accountability and governance arrangements will form part of 
the project scope. 

 
7. Consultation 
 
7.1 Informal and formal consultation was undertaken primarily with those whose posts were 

most affected by the top level organizational changes, namely the Heads of Service. 
Other consultation has been more informal and has included service teams in the 
Education and Social Services Departments, key stakeholders in schools including the 
Education Consultative Forum, the voluntary sector and the Harrow Primary Care Trust, 
including the Board itself. 

 
7.2 The Executive Director has maintained a communication link with the UNISON 

leadership throughout this process and has undertaken to continue this. Formal 
consultation with UNISON and the teaching professional associations on the detail of the 
further structural arrangements for individual Departments within the Directorate will take 
place at the appropriate time. 

94



 
8. Finance Observations 
 
8.1 The top management structure for People First was approved by Cabinet and resources 

for change management made available as part of the Budget 2003/2004. It is anticipated 
that further structural changes leading to new posts in the detailed structure will be paid 
for within existing levels of resource currently available to both the Education and Social 
Services Departments. 

 
9. Legal Observations 
 
9.1 In due course, the individual delegations (Part 3B) of the Council’s Constitution will be 

amended. As indicated above, the law requires the Council to appoint a “Chief Education 
Officer” and a “Director of Social Services”. 

 
10. Conclusion 
 
10.1 Much preliminary work has been undertaken over the past few months to prepare for the 

largest change to affect the Council’s front-line “people services” in at least two decades. 
The pace of change has, to a large extent, been dictated by the pace of recruitment by 
Members to the Director posts in People First. That process is now significantly 
completed. The next stage is to build up the detailed structures in each of the 
Departments in People First. This will inevitably take time over the new six months or so. 
At the same time People First needs to begin to test out some locally based service pilots 
as indicated above in this report to examine the impact they have on local need.  

 
11. Background Papers  
 
11.1 The New Harrow Project, Report of the Chief Executive, Cabinet, 16 July, 2002 
 People First - Progress towards a new Directorate, Report of the Executive Director, 

People First, February 2003   
 
12. Author 
 
12.1 Paul Osburn, Executive Director – People First 
 0208 424 7696 
 paul.osburn@harrow.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
po/scrutiny report – 17.9.03/pp1/8 

95



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A
 

 
 PE

O
PL

E 
FI

R
ST

 
ST

R
A

TE
G

Y 
C

H
IL

D
R

EN
’S

 S
ER

VI
C

ES
 

LE
A

R
N

IN
G

 A
N

D
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y 

C
A

R
E 

SE
R

VI
C

ES
 

(T
ra

ns
iti

on
al

*)
 

Pu
rp

os
e 

D
ire

ct
in

g 
an

d 
co

-o
rd

in
at

in
g 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

 
re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt 

se
rv

ic
es

 to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 th

e 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 o
f P

eo
pl

e 
Fi

rs
t 

Pu
rp

os
e 

Pr
ov

id
in

g 
un

iv
er

sa
l a

nd
 

ta
rg

et
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 e
nh

an
ce

 
lif

e 
ch

an
ce

s 
fo

r c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 

  

Pu
rp

os
e 

Im
pr

ov
in

g 
le

ar
ni

ng
 a

nd
 a

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t a

nd
 

pr
om

ot
in

g 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

so
ci

al
 in

cl
us

io
n 

 

Pu
rp

os
e 

Pr
om

ot
in

g 
in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 fo

r a
du

lts
 a

nd
 

ol
de

r p
eo

pl
e 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
th

ei
r q

ua
lit

y 
of

 
lif

e 
(*

Pr
ov

id
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
po

te
nt

ia
lly

 lo
ca

te
d 

w
ith

 P
C

T 
co

m
m

is
si

on
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

lo
ca

te
d 

in
 P

eo
pl

e 
Fi

rs
t s

tru
ct

ur
e 

– 
to

 b
e 

su
bj

ec
t o

f j
oi

nt
 s

tu
dy

 w
ith

 P
C

T)
 

 Po
lic

y 
an

d 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 
 R

es
ea

rc
h 

an
d 

M
an

ag
em

en
t I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

 Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 a
nd

 R
ev

ie
w

 
 Fi

na
nc

e,
  P

er
so

nn
el

 
an

d 
IC

T 
 C

ap
ita

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

PF
I 

 Sp
ec

ia
l P

ro
je

ct
s 

(e
.g

.  
 S

ch
oo

l 
O

rg
an

is
at

io
n)

  
  

 Ea
rly

 Y
ea

rs
 a

nd
 C

hi
ld

ca
re

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

pl
ay

 s
ch

em
es

 
 C

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ith

 S
pe

ci
al

 
Ed

uc
at

io
na

l N
ee

ds
 

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
in

 N
ee

d 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 a

nd
 th

os
e 

at
 

ris
k,

 th
os

e 
w

ith
  d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
ch

ild
re

n 
lo

ok
ed

 a
fte

r 
 Fa

m
ily

 s
up

po
rt

 
 C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
pl

ac
em

en
ts

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

fo
st

er
in

g,
 a

do
pt

io
n 

an
d 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l h

om
es

 
 Yo

ut
h 

&
 C

on
ne

xi
on

s 
 

 Yo
ut

h 
O

ffe
nd

in
g 

 
 

 Sc
ho

ol
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t &

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

 A
du

lt,
 C

om
m

un
ity

 a
nd

 F
am

ily
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

 Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
 

 H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 D

ru
gs

 E
du

ca
tio

n 
 Ed

uc
at

io
n 

an
d 

B
us

in
es

s 
 

 So
ci

al
 In

cl
us

io
n 

an
d 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

 Li
br

ar
ie

s 
an

d 
A

rt
s 

 A
du

lts
 w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
 A

sy
lu

m
 S

ee
ke

rs
 

 O
ld

er
 P

eo
pl

e 
 Ph

ys
ic

al
 D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
 A

du
lt 

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 

  96


